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Significant financial information

Core JJB resutis o

Tumnover

Gross margin

Underlying operating profit )

Group resutts ()

Turnover

Gross margin

Underfying operating profit (3

Undertying headline earnings per ordinary share 4
Operating profit

Recommended final dividend
Total dividend for the accounting period
Net funds (debl) at the end of the period

Key statistics

Tumover on continuing Underlying operating profit
operations (Core JJB only) (Em) (1) {Core JJB onty) (Em) (1) (3}

{1} Core JJB results include standalone retail stores and the Leisure Division.

53 weeks
ended

30 January
2005

£773.3m
48.0%
£63.3m

£773.3m
48.0%
£63.3m
20.12p
£50.3m

7.0p
10.0p
£4.4m

Underiying headiine eatmings per
erdinary share (p) i4) +

52 weeks
ended Increase /
25 January {decrease)
2004
£771.8m +0.2%
48.7%
£88.0m -28.0%
£920.8m -16.8%
4£5.7%
£60.5m -30.0%
26.99p -25.5%
£71.3m -28.4%
7.0p
10.0p
{£3.6m)
Store selling space at end of period

{Core JJB onty) (000 square feel}

(2) Group results include in the comparative figures, core JJB resuits plus those of TJ Hughes which was sold in November 2003,

{3) These figures are stated before goodwill amortisation of £13.0m (2004: goodwill amortisation £13.1m (£12.8m in the core JJB results) and exceptional operating items of £6.1m).
{8) A definition of undertying headline eamings per ordinary share is given in note 11 in the Notes to the financial statements on page 43.

t Figures restated 10 take account of the bonus issue of ordinary shares in 2001,

Business strategy

* Increasing investment in the Leisure Division with the development of further heatth club/superstore sites
* Gragual migration from small high street stores to new high street superstore sites

* Maintain position as UK market leader in active sports retalting

«  Strengthening relationships with key suppliers with increasing emphasis being placed upon exclusive products

« Development and expansion of product ranges through our own brands




Chairman’s statement

The reduction in our operating profit for the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005, compared to that achieved in
the previous accounting period, partly reflects the strong competitive trading conditions in the clothing secter
of the retail trade but also is partly explained by the clearance of excess clothing ranges and fragmented stocks
which impacted on our gross margin.

Trading conditions are as difficult as any | have known for some years and it is clear te me that consumers have
tightened their belts and that this is fueliing competition between retailers. | believe that trading conditions wil
continye i¢ deteriorale as consumers feel the full impact of the increased interest rates &nd higher taxes which
reduce disposabie incomes; | feel that the low level of confidence amongst cansumers is going to take some
fime to reverse. In my opinion, the factors that would help te restore confidence amaongst consumers would be
a series of base rate cuts, accompanied by a reversal of the Government's continuing increases in direct and
indirect faxation. Over the last nine months we have faken ceriain measures that | believe will keep us
competitive in the present environment. At some cost to margin, we have successfully reduced our clothing
stock by over £20m. We have aiso re-estabiished ourseives as sporting goods and sports clothing retailers —
what | class as "back to basies”.

The profit from our Leisure division continues o grow and we plan t¢ open 18 combined health ciub/
superstores in the current accounting period. Adjusted operating profits within this Division have increased to
£10.6 milfion in the accountng period ended 30 January 2005 from £9.1 million in the previous accounting
period (see page 4 of this Annual report). | am pieased to report that on 13 April 2005, we hit our milestons of
100,000 health club members, | believe that our emphasis on the expansion of this concept over the coming
years will make a significant contribution to the success of the Group. By this time next year we are forecasting
that we will have 175,600 members and our long term goal is 1,000,000 members nationwide.

Degpite the reduced level of profit during the accounting period just ended, we continue to benefit from a very
strong cash fiow which supports the platform for the expansion of our Leisure Division and also of our stang
alone superstores. Dividend levels have also been maintained as an ongoing commitment to our shareholders.

The current difficult trading conditions present fusther chaflenges f0 our employees and mean that their work

ethic is especially important; on hehalf of the Board, | would sgain like 10 take this opportunity to thank aff the
Group's employees for their support and commitment in meeting these challsnges.

D Whelan
Chairman @ %
28 May 2005




Chief Executive’s statement

Review of results

Operating results

The operating results for the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005 fogether with those for the 52 weeks ended 25
January 2004 are analysed as follows:

Turnover Operating profit
2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Continuing operations - Core JJB
JJB retall sfores 710,647 727,377 103,614 122,037
Leisure Division 62,682 44,335 16,623 8,075
773,339 e 114,237 131112
Head office/distribution centre costs (50,309) {43,134)
63,328 874978
Discontinued operations
T J Hughes - 158,040 - 2,52z
773,339 829,812 63,328 90,501

All the comparative figures referred to later in this Statement, exclude the results of the TJ Hughes busingss, which
was soid in November 2003,

Total tumover for the accounting period, within our core business, increased marginally by 0.2 per cent to
£773.3 million from £771.8 million. However, the figures for the accounting period just ended benefit from an
exira weeks trading and on a 52 week comparison tota! turnover fell by 1.1 per cert, This latter figure includes
2 like-for-iike decrease in the turnover of locations which have been trading for over 52 weeks, of 1.2 per cent.

A total increase in turnover of 41 per cent was achieved within the Leisure Division as the expansion of this
Division continued and with the success of the value-for-money offering within the health clubs. This was offset
by an adverse performance from our clothing products where the relatively poor Summer weather, fragmented
ranges and increased competition afiected the level of tumnover achieved in our retall stores.

The clearance of excess clothing ranges and fragmented stock was made through 8 discounted promotional
policy, the Tesuliing impact of which has contributed to 2 decrease in gross margin from 48.7 per cent 16 48.0

per cent. The fall in gross margin from this palicy was partly offset by the increase in health club turnover at a
near 85.0 per cent gross margin.

Operating expenses before goodwill amoriisation and exceptional operating Rems increased by 6.9 per cert 1o
£307.9 million from £288.2 miflion, an increase of £19.7 million. This increase is partly accourted for by
£5.8 million relating to the additional weeks frading in the accounting period just ended, and partly by an
increase of £11.4 million from the number of operating locations within the Leisure Division compared to the
previous accourting period.




The impact of a fall in gross profit of £4.9 milion and
the increase in operating expenses of £19.7 million
resutted in operating profit before goodwilt
amortisation and exceptional operating ftems falling by
28.0 per cert from £88.0 million to £63.3 million.

Interest, taxation and eamings per share
Net interest receivable by the Group of £0.3 million
compares to £2.6 million net interest payable in the
comparative accounting period, and is indicative of
the continuing strong operating cash fiow.

The tofal tax charge for the accourting period was
£17.2 milion compared to £22.4 miflion in the
previous accoutning period resutting in an effective rate
of taxation on the profits of the Group before goodwili
amortisation, and the foss on disposal of a subsidiary
undertaking of 27.0 per cent compared to 27.4 per
cent in the previous accournting period.

Underlying headling eamings per share for the Group,
stated before goodwill amortisation, exceptional
operating ftems and the loss on disposal of a
subsidiary undertaking (see page 33 of the Financial
statements), !l by 25.5 per cent to 20.12 pence per
ordinary share from 26.99 pence per ordinary share in
the previous accounting pesiod. Earnings per ordinary
share for the Group fell by 25.5 per cent.

Operational review

JJB Retail Stores

Product performance from all categories, except
clothing, rernains resilient. The high level of replica
kit tumover achieved during the Euro 2004
tournament adversely affecied sales of some
clothing products; the relatively poor Summer
weather and a fragmented clothing offer also
contributed 16 the fall in tumover of those products,
We have instituted a number of policy changes
which we befieve wit improve the clothing offer in
our Spring/Summer 2005 ranges.

‘Net interest
receivable of
£0.3 million is
indicative of

the continuing
strong
operating
cash flow.”




Chief Executive’s statement continved

High street competition, particularly within the clothing sector, continues to be strong and also had a material
impact on our results. The gross margin on our clothing products was affected by the discourted promotional
poficy which sold off a 'arge part of the excess clothing stocks but also had the effect of considerably reducing the
level of clothing stocks at 30 January 2005.

We have an authoritative range of footwear, equipment, replica kit and golf products, and the trading performance
of these ranges has been satisfactory throughout the accounting period.

Our product strategy continues to be focused upon an offering of branded products from the principal suppliers of Nike
and adidas, supplemented by products at lower price points designed and sourced by our own staff and marksted
under the exclusive brands of Patrick, Olympus, Lotto and Slazenger, This strategy provides our customers with a
variety of choice over a range of prermium and value-for-money price points. In addition, our close refationship with the
principal suppliers is enabling us 1o obtain a range of exclusive products, differertiating our offerings from those of
other retaiters.

We have recently signed an irevocable 993 year ficence with Slazenger Limited at a cost of £10 miltion for the
exclusive right to design, source and sell Slazenger-branded goli clubs, balls, clothing, footwear and accessories
in the Eurcpean Economic Area. This ficence replaces a previous royalty agreement between our two companies.
This agreement should ensure unrestricted product development, enfianced gross margin and income generation
from this brand. We will run an advertising campaign featuring our Stazenger products during the current accounting
period with Tony Jackdin, the former Britisk and US golf Open champion and successful Ryder Cup captain.

We have further strengthenad our golf-branded offering by estering into a royalty agreement to exclusively design,
source and sall “Maxdii” gotf clubs, clothing, foolwear and accessories in the UX and Eire,

Qur Professional Teamwear division have recently signed a three year confract with Leicester Gity Football Ciub to
supply and distribute team Kits, fraining wear and retail merchandise from May 2005. This will be the first kit that
will carmy “JJB" as the kit manufacturers brand. This is in addition to two other kit confracts which started during
2004 - those of Everton FC and the Northem Ireland Football Association.

The icon format continues to use small high street stores which we have closed when a new superstore location
has been opened nearby. They retail a range of mens fashion brands which are not sold within JJB stores. The
growth in this format will continue as we gradually relocate from small high street stores to high street superstores.




The impact of & fall in gross profit of £4.9 mitiion and
the increase in operating expenses of £19.7 milion
resulted in operating profit before goodwil
amortisaticn and exceptional operating items falling by
28.0 per cent from £88.0 miflion to £63.3 mikion,

Interest, taxation and eamings per share
et interest receivable by the Group of £0.3 million
compares to £2.6 million net interest payable in the
comparative accounting period, and is indicative of
the continuing strong operafing cash flow.

The total tax charge for the accounting period was
£17.2 milion compared to £22.4 milion In the
previous accoutning period resulting in an effactive rate
of taxation on the profits of the Group before goodwill
amortisation, and the loss on disposal of a subsidiary
undertaking of 27.0 per cent compared to 27.4 per
cent in the previous accounting period.

Underlying headline earnings per share for the Group,
stated hefore goodwill amortisation, exceptional
operating items and the loss on disposal of a
subsidiary undertaking (see page 33 of the Financial
staternents), fell by 25.5 per cent to 20.12 pence per
crdinary share from 26.99 pence per ordinary share in
the previous accounting period. Eamings per ordinary
share for the Group fall by 25.5 per cent.

Operational review

JJB Retail Stores

Product performance from all categories, except
clothing, rernains resiiient. The tigh level of replica
kit turnover achieved during the Euro 2004
tournament adversely affected sales of some
clothing products; the relatively poor Summer
weather and a fragmented clothing offer aiso
contributed to the faft in tumover of those products.
We have instituted a number of policy changes
which we befieve will improve the clothing offer in
our Spring/Summer 2005 ranges.

"Net interest
receivable of
£0.3 million Is
indicative of
the continuing
strong
operating
cash flow.”




Chief Executive’s statement conined

At 30 January 2005, the 21 health clubs had a combined membership of 88,400, compared to 67,300 members at
30 January 2004 from the 16 health ¢lubs open at that date. Of the 16 clubs which were open at 30 January 2004,
membership has increased by 7 per cent from 67,300 at that date to 72,000 as at 30 January 2005.

The unique concept of a superstore being located on a mezzanine fipor above a heafth club site has the key
attraction of rent for both income streams anly being paid on the footprint. The success of the concept lies also in
the attractiveness to members of providing a well-equipped gym, swimming poo!, health spa, steam room, aerobic
studios and bar area at very competitive value-for-money membership fees; this offering attracts large numbers of
members and thereby coniributes to the success of the concept. Of the 21 health clubs trading at 30 January 2005,
16 are of this concept.

Operating resutts continue to be encouraging with tumaover of the Lejsure Division, including stores, having increased
by 41% to £62.7 million from £44.4 million in the comparative pariod. Adusted operating profits (before a share of
head office and distribution centre costs} increased o £10.6 miliion from £8.1 million in 2004 (see page 4). A
combined unit reaches satisfactory profitability within 12 months of opening; the average operating profit {efore a
share of head office and distribution cenire costs) of the 11 combined units which had been open for over 1 year,
was £768,000 and the average capital expenditure of one of these urits was £2.5 milion,

The availability of sites throughout the UK and the profitability of the combined unit concept gives us confidence in
its potential for growth. Openings planned for the current year total 18 of which 3 had been opened up to 10 April
2005. It is our intention tc continue the heatth club/superstore roll-out programme as & key part of future strategy.

Current trading

At the time of the publication of our Preliminary Resuits for the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005, on 13 April 2005,
we reported that we were experiencing difficuft trading conditions. We advised that our total turmover for the 10
weeks ended 10 Aprll 2005 had fallen by 1.3 per cent when compared to the same period last year, but wamed
that this comparison was flattered by the early cccurrence of Easter in 2005 compared to 2004.

We have found that trading conditions have continued to deteriorate since 10 April across all product groups. In
addition, trading during May and Jure last year benefited from successful tumaver levels of football replica kit in the
buiid-up to the Euro 2004 competition. We anticipate a turnaround in tumaver of footbal! repfica kit in 2006 as a
result of the FIFA World Cup.

Total tumover, for the 16 weeks ended 22 May 2C05, fell by 7.5 per cent as compared with the same period last
year, which included a fall in like-for-like turnover of 7.7 per cent. The Group's gross margin during this period
showed a slight improvement on the same period fast year.

During the accounting period ended 30 January 2005, our clothing category has been the one area of the business
which has not performed satisfacterily. The Board believes this has been in part due to excessive range
fragmentation and palicy changes have been made to address this situation. These changes of poficy include a
greater emphasis being placed on the renges of the principal suppliers of Nike and adidas together with the offering




We have continued the policy of camying out complete
refits and in some stores, “refreshers”, to some of our
older sites. “Refreshers”™ include new flogring,
improved ilumination and a re-paint, A total of 15
stores have been refitted during the accounting period
just ended, togather with 11 stores being "refreshed”.
The total capital expenditure on these sites was £3.5
milion and the net book value of assets which have
been scrapped, amounting to £1.6 millien, has been
charged to operating expenses. Trading results from
the newly-refitted and refreshed stores is satisfactory;
the average increase in tumover has been 9 per cent.

Qur plan is to step up this policy in the current
accounting period with 31 sites identified far refits.
These sites include 12 out of town superstores which
will have mezzanine floors of approximately 8,000
square feet installed in the building.

Internet

For some time we have been considering whether to
trade our products on the Internet but had not yet
pelieved that format to be appropriate. However, the
success of this market over the Jast 12 months has
encouraged us to seek an agreement with Zendor,
the leading distance-shopping fulfilment specialist in
the UK, to launch a JJB e-commerce web site. Within
2 few months, this web site will offer 2 range of
products and fulfilment will largely be direct through
Zendar, except for certain large items which will be
dispatched direct from the supplier.

Leisure Division

During the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005, the
Leisure Division opened 5 new sites, all of which
comprised & health club and a superstore and in
addition, one site included an indoor soccer centre. At
30 January 2005, the Leisure Division traded from 21
combined heaith club/superstores, 4 of which included
indoor soccer centres.

“We have signed
a 999 year
licence to design,
source and sell
Slazenger branded
golf clubs, balls,
clothing, footwear
and accessories.”




heing concentrated upon a smaller number of styles of
individua! categories of clothing than in earfier
seasons, but with the stocking of these styles in
greater quantities. We believe that these changes will
fimit the number of items which need to be discounted
at the end of a season and result in a higher level of
gross margin. Whilst there are inevitable time delays in
the order/delivery cycle before the changes can be
fully implemented, the Board believes that the new
products ordered for Spring/Summer 2005 will
result in @ more authoritative range. The recent
discount promotion poficy has resulted in the levels
of ciothing stocks currently on hand containing
significantly less stock over 3 months old than at the
comparative date last year.

We have ambitious plans for the further expansion of
the Leisure Division, with 17 combined units being
planned for opening during the current accounting
period, which will bring the number of combined
units in operation at 29 January 2006 to 38. An
average of 11 cpenings per annum are planned for
future years. Since the beginning of the current
accounting period, 5 combined unis have been
opened and the total membership of the 26 health
clubs at 26 May 2005 was 106,000.

The growth of the Leisure Division will, dug to timing
issues, produce limited retums in the current
accounting period followed by a significant
improvernent in the fallowing accounting period. In our
refail business | believe that the strategic appreach
which | have outlined above is entirely appropriate and
| am confident in the enhanced profitability from our
successful combined health ciub/superstore units.

TW. Knight
Chief Executive
26 May 2005

“The turnover
of the Leisure
Division has
increased by
47 per cent.”




Financial review

Balance Sheet

Gapital expenditure within the core JUB business for the 53 weseks ended 30 January 2005 was £43.0 million,
compared to £30.5 million in the comparative period. The total expenditure of £43.0 million includes £16.9
million on newly opened stores and health clubs, a further £11.2 million on stores and health clubs to open
after 30 January 2005, £7.7 million on existing stores and £3.2 million on new computer equipment and EPOS
tills. The caphtal expenditure on existing stores includes £3.5 million incurred on refitted and refreshed stores;
the net bock value of tangible fixed assets which have been scrapped ir these stores amounted to £1.6 million
and has heen, written off in operating expenses.

Stock levels have reduced by 12.0 per cent to £112.7 million at 30 January 2005 compared te £128.1 million
at 25 Jaruary 2004 as a result of the successful clearance of excess cigthing stocks.

Partly as a resuit of the reduction in the level of stock, the net cash inflow from operating activities improved by
£26.3 million to £104.¢ miffion. Net funds at 30 January 2005 amounted to £4.4 miilion compared to a net
debt of £3.6 miffion at 25 January 2004, Following a Tender Offer, in February 2004, we anneunced that a total
of 7.25 million ordinary shares had been acquired and cancelled by the Company at a price of 280 pence per
share, a cost of £20.8 million.

Financial risks and treasury policies
The key financia! risks faced by the company are the security of existing funcs, the ongoing availability of new
funds and fluctuations in interest and exchange rates.

The following treasury policies, approved by the Board of Directors, are adopted in order that these risks are
effectively managed.

Liquidity risk management
The Group manages its cash and funding requirements centrally with the objective of maximising interest

income and minimising interest expense. Investments of cash surpluses are made with banks which must
satisfy credit rating and investment criteria approved by the Board of Directors.

Shart term funding requirements are supparted by a committed £100 million revohdng credit bank fagility whict
expires in June 2005, The amount drawn on the revolving credit facility at 30 January 2005 was £25 million
which compares to £85 million at 25 January 2004,

The undrawn facility, being the difference between the amount drawn at any one date and £100 million, hag

been retained in order to ensure that the Group has sufficient fiquid resources to meet the operating needs of
the business.
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Management are currently in discussion with the
Group’s bankers to put in place a new revolving
credit bank facility to replace the existing facility on
its expiry date.

Interest rate risk management

The Group finances its operations through a mixure of
retained profits and the revolving credit bank facifity.
Interest chargeable on the bank facility is based on
floating rates linked to UBOR. No interest rate hedging
agreement is in place over the bank facility because
the Board continues to believe that, given the current
interest rate environment, fluctuations in interest rates
do not pose a significant risk to the Group.

Foreign currency risk management

A significant proportion of the Group’s trading activities
are payable and receivable in sterling and cnly
approximately £25 million per annum is payabie in
dollars. Uniil Decernber 2004, dollars were being
bought and held in a dollar bank account, equivalert at
any one time to the valug of approximately 3 month’s
payables. Since December 2004, the Group has
entered into a series of forward dollar contracts to
provide doflars at a fixed rate of exchange to mest the
Group’s requirements for six months in advance.

Share buy-backs

We obtained the authority from shareholders to
purchase up to 5 per cent of the issued share capital
of the Company at the ime of the AGM on 9 July
2004; this authority will expire at the time of the
2005 AGM in July 2005. After the Tender Offer in
February 2004 where 7.25 million ordinary shares
were acquired and cancelled at a cost of £20.8
million, no further share buy-backs have been
undertaiken by the Company.

"Stock levels

have reduced

by 12 per cent

o £112.7 million.”

1n




Financial review contnued

The Boarg believes that the primary call on the Group’s surplus cash flows should continue to be the further
expansion of the chain of combined health club/superstores and the development and refurbishment of our
retail store chain after which we will consider a further buy back of shares, if that is earnings enhancing.

We will seek a renewal of the authority to purchase up to 5 per cent of the issued share capital at the 2005
AGM, which will then be in place for the following 12 menths.

Dividend

Despite the reduction in underlying headline earnings per ordinary share, the Board has proposed a final
dividend of 7.0 pence net per ordinary share, payable on 18 July 2005 to shareholders recorded on the share
register on 10 June 2005. This dividend, together with the interim dividend of 3.0 pence per share already paid,
Izaves the fotal dividend for the accounting period just ended at 10.0 pence which is identical to the total
dividend per share paid in the comparative period.

Dividend cover based on underlying headling earnings per ordinary share for the accounting period just ended
is 2.0 times and the yield, based on the share price of 208 pence at 28 January 2003, is 4.8 per cent.

Share Capital
Details of the share capital and movements during the accounting period ended 30 January 2005 zre described
in nate 22 in the Notes to the financial statements on page 48.

The share price of the ordinary shares at the close of business on 28 January 2005 was 208p, representing
an equity market capitalisation of approximately £480 millien. This represents a decrease of 19 per cent from
the price of 256p at 23 January 2004. Following the announcement of the Prefliminary results on 13 April 2005,
the closing share price was 214p. On 18 May 2005, the date on which declarable interests have been disclosed
in the Director's report, the share price was 190p.

Office of Fair Trading

in August 2003, the Office of Fair Trading {OFT) pronounced JJB guilty of price-fiing of certain replica kit
products over a two year period during 2000 and 2001 and levied a penalty of £8.4 million.

We [odged an appea! to the indspendent Competition Appeal Tribunal (CAT) against the OFT's decisicn on
lizhility and against the level of the penalty itself. The appeal against liability was heard in March 2004 and the
result announced in October 2004, In the CAT's judgrment on Yiability, JB was sutcessiul on one of the grounds
of appeai, partly successful on angther and unsuccessful on the remaining two grounds.
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The appeal against the level of the penalty was
heard by the CAT in January 2005 and its decision
was announced on 19 May 2005. Whilst we werg
pleased to note that the CAT had reduced the leve!
of the OFT penalty from £8.4 million to £6.7 million
we were disappointed in the amount of the
recuction. We do not befieve that it fully reflects the
findings made in JJB's favour by the CAT in the
liability judgment which allowed JJB's appea in
respect cf one ground of appeal and partly allowed
JJB's appeal in respect of another ground.

Consequently, we intend to make an application to
the CAT for permissicn to appeal to the Court of
Appeal against the CAT's judgments in relation both
to important aspects of its [fability judgment of
October 2004 and on the level of the penalty itseff.

Unitil the publication of our Interim results for the 26
weeks ended 25 July 2004, we had not previously
made any provision in the accounts in respect of the
penalty on the grounds that we believed that we had
not breached any part of the Competiticn Act.
However, following the decision of the CAT which
was announced in October 2004, we accepted, on
the basis of legal advice, that it was then appropriate
to make a provision in the accounts of £2 million in
respect of a penalty.

The decision of the CAT on JJB's appeal against the
level of the penafty, which was announced on 19
May 2005, does not alter our views on the adeguacy
of the £2 8 provision and based upen legal

J.D. Greenwoll
Finance Director
26 May 2005

“Jotal dividend for
the accounting
period has been
maintained at
10.0 pence.”
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In order to maximise store profitability, we have
continued to pursue a policy of migrating from smaller
high street stores to both high street superstores and
out-of-town Superstores where a more complete range
of clothing, footwear and equipment can be displayed.
With the 5 year rent reviews on out-of-town sites
regularly exceeding the rate of inflation, mast of the
steres that we will open in the future are intended to be
of the combined health chub/supersiare format where, by
riegotiation with the landlord, a cap is placed on all future
rent reviews.

Duing the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005, we
opened 15 supersteres {5 of which were of the combinad
heaith club/superstore format) and opened 8 stores as
“icon” stores. During this period, we closed 33, mainly
smaller stores.

At 30 January 2005, we operated from 438 stores
comprising 189 out-of-town superstores, 1G2 high
street superstores, 123 smaller high street stores, 4
small golf stores and 20 icon stores. The selling space
iotaled approvimately 4,234,000 square fest, an

Health Clubs Trafford Republic of reland

2 sites Warringlon 9 stores
Widnes

Aberdeen Wigan Bianchardstown

Banger Dublin Liffey Valiey

Blackburm Nerthern kreland Taflaght

Bristol £ 24 stores

Buten-upen-Trent Scotland

Derby Antrim 58 stores

Glasgow Ballymena

Halifax Bangor Aberdeen

Hull Belfasl Airdrie

Kidderminster Coleraing A

Leeds Craigavon Clydebank

Macclesfield Lisbum Coatbridge

tiddlesbrough Longondeny Cumbermauld

Olgham Newry Dundee

Southport Newtownabbey Dunfemniine

St Helens Newtownards Easterhouse

Swindon Portadawn East Kitbride

increase of 1.2 per cent compared to the sefing space
in operation at 25 January 2004. Included in these
superstore numbers are 21 units which are combined
heafth club/superstores. These operating units compare
1o 448 stores in operation at 25 January 2004,
camprising 191 out of town suparstores, 92 high street
superstores, 147 smaller high street stores, 5 smalf golf
stores and 13 icon stores, representing 4,184,000
square feet of selling space.

Ouring the accounting period just ended, we have
continugd the policy of carrying out complete refits or
"refreshers” te some of our older sites. We plan to step
up this policy in the current gccounting period with 31
sites identified for refits. These sites include 12 out of
town superstores which will have mezzanine floors of
approximately 8,000 square feet instailed in the building.

The number of retail stores opened in the last 4 years
plus those stores which have been or will be refitted or
refreshed up to January 2006, represents 46 per cent of
the total steres in operaticn at 30 January 2005,

Edinburgh B Cumbria/North East I HNorth West
Elgin 23 stores 74 stares
Fatkirk
Glasgow Barrow-in-Furness Accrington
Glenrothes Carlisie Aftrincham
Greenack Darfngton Ashton-under-Lyne
Hamiton Durham Baguley
lverness Gateshead Birkenhead
Invine Hardepeol Blackbum
Kilmarnock Kendal Blackpool
Kirkcaldy Middlesbrough Bolton
Livingston Newcastie Bootle
Metherwel North Shisids Bromborough
Paistey South Shiglds Burnley
Peith Stockton Busry
Renfrew Sunderland Chester
Stiing Washington Chorley
Wishaw Crewe
Elesmare Port
Lancaster
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- Property review and store locations

Qur plans for store openings in the current accounting
period are well advanced, with 33 stores planned for
opening including 18 combined health club/superstores
and 15 stand alone superstores. Two of the health
club/superstore sites will aiso include an inggor socger
centre. Contracis have already been exchanged on 25 of
these sites with the remainder close to final approval.

We have aiready identified openings for the following
accounting period of a further 11 stores, including &
combined health club/superstores (one of which
incorporates an indoar soccer centre} and 5 stand alone
stores; contracts for 8 of these sites have already been

exchanged.

B.J.K.Dunn

Property Director

26 May 2005

Leigh ;;i Yorkshire West Midlands

Liverpoot # 42 stores. 37 stores

Macclesfield

Manchester Bamsiey Banbury

Qlgham Bradiord Birmingham

Prescot Dewsbury Coventry

Preston Doncaster Dudley

Rochdale Grimshy Hanley

Runcomn Halifax Hereford

Salforg Harrogale Kidderminster

Skelmersdaie Huddersfieid Leamington Spa

Southport Hult Newcastle-under-Lyme

St. Helens Keighley Cldoury

Stockport Leeds Redditch

Walkden Pudsey Rugby

Wallasey Rotherham Shrewsbury

Warringtan Scarporough Solibull

Widnes Scunthorpe Stafford

Wigan Sheffieid Stetchferd

Workington Viakefieid Stratford-upon-Avan
York Sutton Colcfield




Tamworth
Teliord

Walsall

West Bromwich
Wolverhampton
Worcesler

£ East Midiands
i 22 stores

Baston
Burton-upon-Trent
Chesterfield
Corby

Derdy

Grantham
Leigester

Lincoln
Loughtorough
Manshigid

Northampton
Notlinghiam
Peterborough

Wales
20 stores

Bangor
Bridgend
Caerphifly
Cargiff
Carmarthen
Cwmbran
Haverfordwes(
Liandudno
Ltanefli
Liantrisant
Nevport
Rhyl
Swanses
Wrexham

& East Anglia
i 9 stores

Bury St. Edmunds
Felixstowe

Great Yarmouth
|pswich

Kings Lyan
Norwich

South west
2% stoves

Barnslapfe
Bath

Bristal
Cheftenham
Cowley
Dorchester
Exeter

Gloucester
Ouford
Plymouth
Pogle
Salisbury
Swindon
Taunton
Torquay
Truro
Yeovil

i South East
ii o7 stores

Aldershot
Ashford
Aylasbury
Basildon
Basingstoke
Becklon

Bediord
Bexfey Heath
Borghamwaod
Bournemouth
Bracknell
Brent Cress
Brighton
Bromiey
Camberiey
Cambricge
Canterbury
Charlten
Chatham
Chelmsford
Colchester
Colliers Wood
Crawley
Craydon
Bover

Eafing
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Eastbourne
Eogeware
Eltham

Enfield

Epsom

Fareham
Famborough
Friem Barnet
Gillingham
Gravesend
Guilcifiord
Hammersmith
Harlow

Hastings

Haves

Hemel Hempstead
Iford

Kingston
Londen (Central}
Lulon

WMaidstane
Milton Keynes
Newbusry
New Cross
Orpington
Portsmouth
Reading
Rickmond
Romiord
Slough
Southampton
Southend
Staines
Stevenage
Sumey Quays
Sutten
Twickenham
Usbridge
Walthamstow
Waterlooville

Watiord

Welvwwyn Garden City
West Thurrack
¥imcheste

Waoking

Wood! Green
Worthing




Directors’ biographies

Executive Directors

David Whelan - Chairman

Aged 68, David Whelan was formerly a professional footballer, principally with Blackburn Rovers. On his retirement
from professional football, he acouired 2 single grocery store and bullt up a chain of six supermarkets called
Whelan’s Discount Stores which he sold to Wm Morrison Supermarkets plc in 1978, He had earlier formed JJB
Sports in 1971 1o acquire the business of a single sports store in Wigan, which hat been frading singe the early
1900s. From 1978 until 31 January 2001, David Whelan was Executive Chairman during which time he was
involved in a wide range of Group operations and has been a major influence in the success of the Group. On 1
February 2001, he became Chairman, responsible both for ensuring that the Board functions effectively ard also
for general strateqgic issues as opposed to day 1o day executive matters. In addition, David Whelan halds a
contrelling interest in Whelco Holdings Limited which operates the sports stadium in Wigan named the “JJ8
Stadium”, Wigan Athletic Focthall Club, Wigan Warriors Rugby League Club and Qrrell Rughy Union Club.

Tom Knight — Chief Executive

Aged 52, Tem Knight joined JJB in October 2002 after a long and successful career at Blacks Lefsure Group plc
during which he held several pesitions culminating as Managing Director of their Sports and Fashion Division. Prier
to this he spent seven years working for adicas before establishing his own successful chain of retail sports stores.
He was appointed Operations Director of JJB in October 2002 and was subsequently appointed Chief Executive in
November 2002. He is also a Non-executive Director of Ultimate Leisure pic.

David Greenwood, FCA — Finance Director and Company Secretary

David Greenwood, aged 61, spent five years with PricewaterhouseCoopers before spending a further five years as
a financial controller in industry. He joined Whelan’s Discount Stores as Financial Controller in 1976 and, after the
sale of that company in 1978, he was appointed Finance Director of JJB Sports. David Greenwoed has overall
responsibility for all accounting, administrative and company secretarial funclions,

Barry Dunn, MRICS — Property Director

Aged 48, Barry Dunn joined JJB Sports in 1986 as Estates Manager after ten years in commercial and residential
agency. In 1992 he left to take up the position of Estates and Development Controller with Matalan ple, where he
gained valuable experience in the development of out-of-town retailing. Returning to JJB Sports in 1995 as
Praoperty Director, Barry Dunn bas full respensibility for the Group's existing properties and for identifying and
negotiating the acquisition of new sites.
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Non-executive Directors

Andrew Thomas, FCA

Andrew Thomas is the senior Non-executive Director, He is aged 62 and was appointed &s & Noa-executive
Director in October 1994. He was Executive Chairman of The Greenalls Group pic until his retirement in February
2000 and is a Non-executive Director of The Restaurant Group plc and & number of non-quoted companies, He
is also a Partner in Moors Andrew Thomas (Private Clients) Limited, Chartered Accountants.

Roger Lane-Smith

Roger Lane-Smith, aged 59, was appointed as a Non-executive Director in November 1998. He was Senior
Partner and Chairman of DLA Piper Rudnick Gray Cary UK LLP from 1988 10 2005 and was appointed a Senfor
Consuttant to the practice in May 2005. He is a Non-execirtive Director of MS International plc, Timpsons plc
and & number of other non-quoted companies. He is also & council member of the CBI.

David Begver

David Beever, aged 64, was appointed as a Non-executive Director in March 2000, He is Chairman of KPMG
Corporate Finance and a Non-executive Director of London & Centinental Railways Limited, The Paragon Group
ot Companies plc angd Volex Group plc. He was previously a Vice Chairman of SG Warburg & Ce Limited.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Andrew Thomas (GCommittee Chairman)
Roger Lane-Smith

David Beever

This committes consults with the external auditors on the Groug's financial statements, accounting pelicies,
internal controls and any other matfers raised by the auditors.

Remuneration Committee

Reger Lane-Smith {Committes Chairman)

Andrew Thomas

David Beaver

This committee reviews the remuneration of the Group's Executive Direciors.

Nominations Commitiee
Roger Lane-Smith {Committee Chairman)
Andrew Thomas

David Beaver
This committee reviews the appoiniment of the Group's Directors.
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Directors and advisers

Directors

D. Whelan (Chairman)

TW. Knight (Chief Executive)

J.D. Greenwood (Finance Director)

B.J.K. Dunn {Property Director)

A.G. Thomas {Non-executive Director)
R. Lane-Smith {Non-executive Director)
D.MM. Beaver (Non-executive Diraclor)
Registered Office

Martland Park,

Challenge Way,

Wigan,

Lancashire,

WNS5 0LD

Company numher
Registered in England and Wales,
Nurmber 1024895

Company secretary
J.0. Greenwood

Financial advisers and stockbrokers
UBS Limited

1 Finsbury Avenue,

London,

EC2M 2PP

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP,
Chartered Accountants,
201 Deansgate,
Manchester,

MBG 24T
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Solicitors

DLA Piper Rudnick Gray Cary UK LLP

101 Barbirolli Square,
Manchester,
M2 3DL

Platt and Fishwick
The QId Bank,
King Street,
Wigan,
Lancashire,

WN1 1DB

Bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
1 Marsden Street,
Manchester,

M2 1HW

Registrars

Capita Registrars
Bourme House,

34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham,

Kent,

BR3 47U

Financial public relations
The Maitland Consultancy Limited
Qrion House,

5 Upper St Martins Lane,
Lendon,

WC2H 9FA




Directors’ report

For the 53 waeks ended 30 January 2005

The Directors of JUB Sports pic (the Group) present their Annual report on
the affairs of the Group, together with Financial statements and the
Auditors™ report for the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005.

Principal activities and business review

The principal activity of the Group continues fo be the refailing of sportswear
and sports equipment. The Group also includes 2 separate Leisure Division,
which operates health clubs and indoor soccer centres. A review of
operations for the accounting period is set cut in the Chairman's staterment,
the Chief Exscutives statement and the Financial review on pages 2 1 13.

Subsidiaries

The subsidiary undertakings principally affecting the profits or net assets of
the Group in the accounting period are listed in note 14 in the Notes 1o the
financial statements on page 45.

Results and dividends

The Group profit for the accounting period after taxation is £33,799,000
before provision for dividends, paid and proposed, of £23,080,000.
Retained profits for the accounting periog of £10,119,000 have been
transferred to reserves.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 7.0 pence net per ordinary
share (2004 — 7.0 pence) which when added to the interim dividend of 3.0
pence (2004 — 3.0 pence} gives a total dividend for the accounting period
of 10.0 pence net per ordinary share (2004 — 10.0 pence). f approved at
the forthcorning Annual General Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on
18 July 2005 to shareholders on the share register at the close of business
on 10 June 2005,

Directors
The current members of the Board of Directors are listed on page 18 of this
Annual report. All Directors served throughout the accounting period.

The Articles of Association require one third of Directors to retire by rotation
at every Annual General Meeting, in addition to the re-confirmation of
Directors appointed during the year, David Beever, Barry Dunn and David
Greenwood are the Directors due 1o refire by rotation and resolutions will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting for their re-election.

Full details of the cost of the service contracts, remuneration and incentive
packages provided for the Directors and their interests in the share capital
of the Company are given in the separate Remuneration report in this
Annual report on pages 28 to 31.

Remuneration report

The Directors’ Remuneration Report Requlations 2002 require that the
remuneration report must be tabled for a sharehalder vote, at each Annual
General Meeting. Accordingty, a resolution will be proposed fer the approval
by the shareholders of the Remuneration report.

International Financial Reporting
Financial statements for the 52 weeks ending 22 January 2006 and all
subsequent periods will be prepared in accordance with Intemational

Finanial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™). This will require an opening balance
shest as at 25 Janvary 2004 to be prepared under IFRS, together with &
full profit and ioss account, balance sheet and cash flow statement for the
53 weeks ended 30 January 2005 for comparative pumoses. It is intended
to restate these figures at the time of the announcement of the IFRS results
for the 26 weeks to 31 July 2005,

Work has already begun to identify the areas that will be most affected by
the introduction of IFRS. Areas heing reviewed include changes to the basls
of actounting for leases, share based payments, goodwill and dividends,
As there is still some work to be done in order to finalise the scope of IFRS
and to review the completenass of the areas to he affected, it is possible
that other areas may arise which may impact upon the Group's resufts in
the preparation of its first Tull set of IFRS Financial staterments which will
be for the 52 weeks ended 29 January 2006.

Declarable interests

As at the 18 of May 2005 the following notifications had bieen received ffom
holders of material interests in 3 per cent or more of the Company’s issued
share capital:

Noumber of 5p Percentage
ordinary shares  of share capital
Morley Fund Management Limited 13,148,015 57
Harris Associates LP. 9,319,500 4.0
The Capital Group Companies Inc. 7,196,818 31
West Coast Capital 3,480,193 15

Under section 208(5) of the Companies Act, West Coast Capital is desmed
to have an additionat interest in a furher 13,062,061 ardinary shares,
representing 5.7 per cent of the issued share capital, which are capable of
being redelvered under a stock loan agreement. West Coast Capital does
not have vating rights over these shares.

The fotal interests of the Directors, as detalled in the Remuneration report on
page 31 together with those of their immediate families and family trusts,
amounted to 89,644,388 ordinary shares of 5 pence each, representing
38.8 per cent of the Company’s share capital as at 18 May 2005.

Share buy-hack authority

Authortty was given by the shareholders for the Company to purchase up fo
5 per cent of its issued share capital at the time of the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) on 9 July 2004; this authority will expire at the time of the
2005 AGM in July 2005. After the Tender Offer in February 2004 where
7 25 milion ordinary shares were acquired and cancelled at a cost of £20.8
million, no further share buy-backs have been undertaken by the Company,

JJB will seek a renewal of the autharity o purchase up to 5 per cent of its
issued share capital at the 2005 AGM, which will then be in place for the
follawing 12 months,

Close company status
The Company is not a close company within the provisians of the Income
and Corporation Taxes Act 1988,
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Directors’ report continwea

Charitable and political coniributions

Charitable denations of £65,000 (2004 - £9,500) were made by the
Group during the accounting periad. Included in this figure is £50,000
donated to the Tsunami Appeal Fund and £15,000 denated to the Variety
Club Childrens Chartty.

The Group again participated in the Macmillan Cancer Relief foothall badge
campaign. JJB is pleased to report that, for the 53 weeks ended 30
January 2005, total donations of approximately £82,000 were raised from
purchases of football badges by its customers and staff, The t0tal now
raised through the Group's stores since the beginning of this campaign in
Januany 1999 is approximately £1.1 million.

The Group also continues to support the Variety Club Childrens Charity
appeal with its charity golf day which in 2004 raised a fotal of £90,000 to
enabie a further 6 Sunshine coaches to be purchased by the charity.

Additionally, many employees with support from the Group, have taken part
in various charitable fund-raising activities during the year.

No contributions were made to political parties.

Supplier payment policy

The Group's policy for the payment of suppliers is 1 agree terms of
payment with suppliers at the time that orders are placed. Payment is then
made in accordance with the agreed terms. Trade creditor days of the
Group at 30 January 2005 were 23 days, based on the ratio of trade
creditors at the end of the accounting period o the amounts paid during the
accounting period to trade creditors.

Aunditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in cffice
as auditers o the Company and a resolution for thel re-appointment as
auditors and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration will
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Employment issues

The Group employs approximately 11,500 people throughout the United
Kingdom and overseas and is proud of its record as a responsible and
valued employer.

JuB Sparts plc is an equal opportunities employer, and as such the following
key values are respected throughout JfB's operations:

« All employees should be treated fairly and equally and the worlplace
should be free from discriminaticn, harassment and intimidation;

« Recriftmert, retention and progression of empioyees is based solely on
persanal ability and competency for the work in question; and

* [isabled persons should enjoy equal opportunities within the workplace.
Inthe event of an employee becoming disabled during the course of their
smployment, the Group will make every affort to provide an apportunity
for them to remain with the Group.

20

7 Employee training

The Group betieves in encouraging employees to maximise their potential
and 50 providas training which ensures that they are able to parform their
duties 1o the best of their abilities.

A number of retail employees annually undertake National Vocational
Qualifications in customer service through the Group's principal training
providers, Performance through People. During the 53 weeks ended 30
January 2005, a signfficant proportion of empioyees on this course
achioved qualfications of various levels under the scheme. In addition, staff
working within the health ¢lubs sign up to a Training Pathway Programme
and undertake varicus NVG qualifications, refevant to their position. The
Group hopes that this scheme, along with other in-house initiatives, will
help to further improve customer service levels at it operating nits.

Driver fraining is provided to fork lift truck drivers, in order to improve
safety in the Distrution centre.

The Group financially supports those employees wishing to obtain
relevant professional qualifications whilst in the employment of the Group.
Professional staff are also encouraged to attend training courses and
seminars as and when necessary, in order that they keep up to date with
developments relevant to their work and areas of expertise. Career
progression is avaitable 1o employess across the Group.

Employee consultation

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employess
in matters affecting them as employees. JJB has continued the practice of
keeping employees informed on such matters and on the various factors
affecting the performance of the Group. This is achieved through regular
meetings imvolving Directors, managers and supervisory staff 10 corvey
information about the business as well as via notice boards and the intranet.

The GMB Union are accepted by the Company to negotiate collective
bargaining on behalf of hourly paid staff within the Distributicn centre.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting (AGM; of shareholders wilt be held at 12 noon
on Wednssday 6 July 2005 at the JJB Stadium, Loire Drive, Wigan,
Lancashire, WN5 OUH. The Notice of the Meeting is included in a separate
circutar issued to shareholders with this Annual report and Financial
staternents. Certain Special Business is to be proposed at the AGM, details
of which are set out in the Notice of the Mesting,

Included in this Special Busiess is a resolution to grant authorty to enebie the
Company to purchase in the market, up to 5 per cent of its issued share capital;
the Board intend that this authority will onlde exercised if & is considered by
the Directors to be in the best interests of thetshareholders generally and if to
do so would be likely to result in an ingfeagy i eamings per share.

By order of the Board  J.D. GreenWliagib/GAmpany Secretary
Martiand Park, Chatllenge Way
Wigan, Lancashire WN5S OLD

26 May 2005




Corporate governance report

Introduction

JB is fully committed 1o high standards of comporate governance and
sets out below its repart on how it complies with the provisions set aut in
Section 1 of the July 2003 Financial Reporting Councils Revised
Combined Code on Corporate Governance (2003 FRC Gode).

Compiiance
The Company has, during the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005,
complied with Section 1 of the 2003 FRC Code.

The Board of Directors

The Board, which is uttimately responsitle for the direction, management
and performance of the company, met seven imes during the acgounting
period ended 30 January 2005. Throughout this accounting period, the
Board of Directors comprised four Executive and three Non-executive
Directors. Short biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 16 1o
17 of this Annual report. There is a clear division of responsibiffies at the
head of the Company between the roles of D. Whelan (Chairman) who is
responsible for the operation of the Board and TW. Knight (Chief
Executive) who is responsible for implementing strategy.

The Board determines corporate strategy and reviews both financial and
operational performance against plans, Full and timely access to afl
relevant information is provided to all Board members, via comprehensive
informatior: packs, in order that it can discharge its duties effectively, The
information packs are produced in advance of such meetings and include
up to date management accounts and detailed trading information.

A.G. Thomas is the nominated senior independent Non-executive Director,

All of the Non-exscutive Directors are considered by the Board to be
independent of Management and of the Company’s major shareholders.
Although one of the Non-executive Directors, R, Lane-Smith wag Senior
Partner zt DLA Piper Rudnick Gray Cary UX LLP {DLA) from 1998 to
2003, afirm of solicitors used by JJB, it is not the belief of the Executive
Directors, that the fees paid to DLA are such as to interfere with his
independent character, judgment and integrity: during the accounting
period ended 30 -fanuary 2005, £361,000 was paid to DLA for fegal
work incurred during the ordinary course of business {2004;
£479,000). Included in the fees paid to DLA during the accounting
period ended 30 January 2005 was £267,000 (2004: £253,000] of
costs in respect of defending the action bought against JJB by the
Office of Fair Trading. The amount paid by the Group to DLA during the
accounting period ended 30 January 2005, represented only 0.1 per
cent of DLA's UK fee income,

All Directors are subject to refirernent by rotation and re-election, subject
1o continued satisfactory performance, by the Company's shareholders in
accordance with the Articles of Association, whereby a number of
Directors closest to but not exceeding one third of the Directors refire by
rotation each year or, if this gives a number less than three, then one

further Director sheuld retire. Al Directors are subject to re-election by the
shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting following their
appoiriment by the Board.

The Board of Directors of JJB note the principle of Non-executive
Directors narmally not serving on a Board for more than 9 years, as set
out in the 2003 FRC Code.

The Board recognises that A.G. Thomas, who has served on the Board
since October 1994, brings to the Board a wide range of experience both
as a practicing accountant and as the former Executive Chairman of a
PLC operating in the same part of the leisure industry in which JJB's
Leisure Division cperates. The Board of JJB do not believe that the length
of time during wiich A.G. Thomas fias served on the Board affects the
independence which he brings to his position as & Non-executive Director.

Details of the natice periods in the service contracts of Executive and
Non-executive Directors are set out in the Cirectors' remuneration report
on page 29 of this Annual report.

There is an established procecure whereby any Director may, in the
furtherance of their duties, have access to independent professional
advice ang services af the Group's expenss. The Finance Cirector aiso
acts as the Company Secretary and as such is responsible for ensuring
that Beard procedures are followed and that the Beard seeks independent
advice whenever necessary. Where congsidered appropriate, relevant
training is made available to any Director and the need for such training
s assessed on & reguiar basis.

In order to assist in the discharge of corporate governance
responsibilities, the Board has delegated certain responsibilities to Board
Committess, which operate within clearly defined terms of reference.
These committees are described below.

Audit Gommittee

The Audit Committee, which meets twice a year, is chaired by A.G. Thomas,
who has recent and relevant financial experience, and also comprises of
the other two Nen-executive Directors with the Finance Director and the
Group's external auditors in attendance. The Audit Committes’s
responsibilities include making a recommendation on the appointment,
retirement and removal of the external audftors, This Committee consults
with the extemal aucitors on the Group’s financial statements, accounting
policies, internal contrals and the risk management process as wej as any
other matters raised by the auditors. The Committee subsequently makes
recommendations fo the Board when necessary. The Committee also
considers the independence and objectivity of the external auditors, the
services they provide, and the scope of their audit work and refated fees
aong with a review of their reported findings.

The Group’s Risk Controiinternal Audit Manager fhas direct access to the
Chairman and to members of the Audit Committes,
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all the independent Non-executive
Directors and s chaired by R. Lane-Smith. The Committes ravisws the
contractual and remuneration arrangements of the Executive Directors and
the senior executives, based upon their performance during the accounting
period. Fult detalls of the remuneration arrangements for the Directors are
set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 28 to 31 of this
Annual report.

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee is also chaired by R. Lane-Smith and comprises
the other Non-executive Directars, The Committes is responsible for making
recommendations on the appointment of new Directors to the Board and in
respect of the Board's balance and structure. The Nominations Committes
has not met during the accounting period ended 30 January 2005.

Attendance at Board/Committee Meetings

The foilowing table shows the number of Board and Committee meetings
held during the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005 and the attendance
record of the individuat Directors.

Board Audit  Remuneration  Nominations
of Directors  Committee Committee Committes
No. of meetings 7 2 5 0
D. whelan 5 - - -
TW. Knight 7 - -
J.D. Greanwood 7 - -
B.JK Dunn 6 - - -
AG. Thomas 7 2 5 b
R. Lane-Smith 7 2 5 0
D.M.M. Besver 7 2 5 0
Associate Board of Directors

Individual Exscutive Directors are respensible for the control of operational
matters. In order to effect day to day control of the Group, a second tier
Board was created in 1998 known as the Associate Board which currently
comprises the Chairman and Executive Directors, together with 14
Associate Directors who are senior executives of the Group responsible
for all key disciplines within the business.

Whilst the Associate Directors have not been appointed 1o the office of
Companies Act Director, their experience and knowledge ensure a strong
link between the Group’s strategy which is set by the Board and its
implementation across the business

Performance evaluation

The performance of the Board, its Non-executive Directers and Board
Committees has been monitored during the year. The senior indepandent
Non-executive Director appraises the performance of the Chairman
through discussions with &l the Directors individuatly, and together with
the Chairman appraises the performance of the Chief Executive. The
performance of the other Executive Directors is monitored throughout the
year by the Chief Executive and the Chairman.

Internal contro! and risk management

The Company has established an Internal control framework
encompassing hoth its financial and non-financial controls, the
effectiveness of which is regulzrly reviewed by the Board and senior
executives.

The Board is ultimately responsible for maintaining the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management processes and the system of internal
cantrol, whilst it is the role of management to implement Board policies
on sk and control, The Board is assisted in discharging its duties by the
Audit Committes, which provides a direct link to both intemal and external
auditors thwough regular meetings. Such a system is desighed to
effectively manage, rather than eliminate, the risks that are sigrificant to
the fulfilment of the Group's business objectives of long-term growth of
sharehoider value via the maximisation of future eamings, and the
safeguarding of the Group’s assets.

In accordance with the requirements of the 2003 FRC Code, the Group
has operated a risk management process throughout the 53 weseks
ended 30 .January 2005. The process is designed to ensure that all
significant risks to the achievement of the Group's chiectives are
identified on a timely basis, assessed and managed effectivaly.

Any system of internal contrgl can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance that all significant business risks will be fully
mitigated. However, by ensuring that the system of internal controi
reflects the risk environment in which the Group operates, the system
should provide adequate assurance that the key risks facing the Group
are properly managed.

The Board sets the overall strategy and policy of the Group and has put
in place a well-defined organisational structure, with cleany understood
lines of responsibility and delegation of authority to help ensure that
strategies and policies are effectively implemented and adhered to.

Detailed operational procedures are adopted and followed by the Group's
principal functional activities and are designed to incorporate key
controls. These key controls are subject to periodic internal audit review
o ensure that they are being operated effectively and that they are
suitable to manage any significant business risks faced by the Group.
Reports of internal audit reviews which have been performed, are made
available to the Board and the Audit Committee.

The risk management processes and intema! controls are continuously
reviewed for effectiveness and assessed by the Board, as part of their
Executive responsibiliies. The Board censiders all significant aspects of
imemal control, including financial, operaticnal and compliance conirols,
as well as the risk management process adopted by the Group, and
believes this will provide the ability 1o promptly identify and appropriately
respond 1o areas of material cancemn. The raview process is based onthe
reports made to the Board by the Risk Control/internal Audit Manager and




the Associate Director of Retail Audit, as well as other ad hot reports from
Management. The Board also takes into consideration any matters raised
by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed both the
effectiveriess and level of intermal audit resources avaiable within the
Group and believes that it is appropriate for the size and nature of the
risks facing the Group.

Auditor independence

Deloitte & Touche LLP have reported to the Audit Committee that, in their
prafessional judgement, they are independent and that the objectivity of
the audit partner and audit staff is not impaired. The Audit Commiitee
have reviewed this report and agrees with its conclusion and is satisfied
that Deleitte & Touche LLP has adequate policies and safeguards in place
to ensure that auditor objectivity and independence is maintained. The
Audit Committee are aware that providing audit and non-audit advice
could lead to a potential conflict of interest. In order 1o ensure the
continued independence and cbjectivity of the external auditors there are
established policies regarding the provision of non-audit services.

Relations with shareholders

The Group is committed to maintaining an active dialogue with shargholders
in order fo build a mutual understanding of its objectives. The Board invites
institutional shareholders and analysts to briefings after the announcement
of the Company’s Interim and Annual results. There is also regular dialogue
with individual institutional investors, fund managers and analysts.

The Board encourages communication with private shareholders through
publication of the Interim and Annual results as well as the trading
updates at the time its Annual General Mesting and after Christmas. The
Annuel General Meeting is used as an opportunity to gather the views of
sharsholiers and to answer the questions of both private and institutional
investars on alf issues relevant to the Group.

The Group's website, wew.jjb.co.uk, also includes an area dedicated to
corporate information, inciuding Annual and interim reports, press releases,
share price histaries, Group news and certain Group policy documents.

Health and safety

Operating in a safe manner, with due consideration to the health, safety
and weliare of all employees and others who may be affected by the
Group’s work activities, is vital to the success of the business and is
something to which the Group is fully committed.

Overall responsibility for heatth and safety strategy rests with the Board of
Directors, In order to effect day to day control of health and safety, JJB
has an Associate Director of Group Health, Safety and Insurance, Lesley
Lindley. Lesley is an associate of the Institite of Occupational Safety and
Health, the Institute of Risk Management and the Chartered Insurance
institute and reports directly to the Board of Directors on all heafth and
safety issues together with all insurance matters.

All retail store and health club managers have now undergone a basic
health and safety training course covering the most common health and
safety issues in the workplace, The course is approved by the Chartered
Institute of Environmental Heaith. A rolling programme is in place o
ensure that this training is kept up to date. Further training is currently
heing considered for more senior retail and leisure management and is
demonstrative of the Group’s ongoing commitment to heatth and safety.

Distribution centre managers have undertaken ‘Managing Safely’
courses arganised by the Institute of Occupational Safety and Health, in
order to ensure the competence of those managers in contributing to the
overall safety of the Distribution centre environment.

Directors’ responsibilities

LUniteg Kingdom company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial
statements for each accounting period which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss
of the Group for that period.

In preparing those Financial statements, the Directors are required to:

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» IMake judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and

* State whether applicable accounting standards have been foliowed,
subject 1o any matenial departures disclosed and explained in the
Financial staternents.

The Directors confirm that these Financial statements comply with the
above requirements.

The Directors are responsible for maintaining adequate accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finangial
position of the Company and the Group and to enable ther to ensure that
the Financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are
also responsible for the maintenance of an appropriate system of internal
contrgls and for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group
and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irreguiarities.

The Group's website contains up to date information on the Group
activities and its published financial results, The Directors are responsibie
for the maintenance and integrity of this website

Going concem

After making appropriate enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group's
accounts.




Corporate social responsibility report

JJB recognises that it has a duly to ensure that its business is conducted in a socially responsible manner
resulting in high standards of bath social and environmental behaviour. Through its employees, the Group aims
1o compiy with all applicable laws in order 1o meet, and where possible exceed, best practice conditions in both
the national and global markets within which it operates.

Gorporate responsibility is monitored on an ongeing basis via the Comorate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee. The GSR Committee is comprised of a number of senior executives and is tasked with ensuring that
the range of controls which JJB has in place to manage CSR risks &re operating effectively and that responses
1o changes in current legislation are implemented in a timely manner.

Commitment

JJB is committed to minimising any negative social impacts and wishes to be recognised as 2 leading corporate
citizen within all areas of its operation, The Company continues 1o be selected for inclusion in the FTSE4Good
Index, launched in July 2001, which is designed to measure the performance of companies that meet globaliy
recognised corporate responsibility standards, and to facilitate investment in those companies. The FTSE4Good
Index is used as a basis for the creation of socially responsible investment products.

JJB was also pleased to be included on the Business in the Community index of Corporate Responsibility as
well as the Business in the Environment index of Corporate Environmental Engagement and the Kempen SNS
Smaller Europe SRI inclex.

During 20C5 JJB intends to piace full details of its CSR programme on the London Stock Exchange Corporate
Responsibility Exchange.

Inclusion within the indices referved to above will allow JJB to compare and assess how it integrates responsible
business practices through its organisation with those of its peers, identifying opportunities for improvement,
and also provide further demonstration to current and potential shareholders that JJB is compiant with best
practice.

Guiding principles of corporate social responsibility

JuUB is fully committed to ensuring its business is conducted in a socially responsible manner and has developed
a set of broad corporate responsibility principles which it follows and which will guide its future progress. These
principles relate to community refations, environmental issues and ethical Izsbour standards.
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Community relations

JIB values the relationships with both its customers and the widey
communities within which it eperates and will behave as a good fellow
citizen in alf areas of activity,

JJB's main contribution to the community is delivered via its business
activities. The Group's stores and health clubs play a vital role in
satisfying the needs of its customers allowing the redistribution of
wealth back into the community through the staff we employ and train.
The Group is fully committed to ensuring that both the products and
services it offers are delivered by way of focus upon the family and
always with value for money in mind, As a further demenstration of the
commitment to the community, JJB’s indoor soccer centres are
availabie to local schools, free of charge,

The Board recognises the need to extend the Group’s ‘people first'
philosophiy beyond its business and deliver something tangible back
into the community. Its community programme provides support to
nominated local and national charities and good causes including
Macmillan Cancer Relief and the Variety Club Childrens Charity. The
Group also offers support to its employees who participate in chosen
projects.

Macmiilan Cancer Relief

Macmillan Cancer Relief is dedicated to helping people living with
cancer. They are working towards the day when everybody has equal
and ready access to the best possible treatment and when care and
unnecessary levels of fear are set aside.

In the UK, over a million people are living with cancer and four in ten
people will be dlagnosed with canger during their lifetime. Thess figures
are forecast to increase, and so will the demand for Macmilian's
services.

JJB are pleased 1o continue to be associated with Macmillan Cancer
Relief, one of our chosen charity partners. Through the network of
approximately 440 stores and Head office facilities, JJB has been
invelved in the sale of foothalt badges to customers and staff, the
proceeds of which are passed to Macmillan Cancer Relief. JJB has
raised approximately £82,000 during the accounting period ended 30
January 2005. This brings the total raised through JJB since the
campaign began in 19399, to approximately £1.7 million.

The money raised has helped fund Macmillan's increasing range of
services, including the Macmillan nurses and doctors, new cancer care
centres, the publication of a range of cancer information documents,
distributed through its information and support centres, together with
direct financial help far those who need it most.

Variety Club Childrens Charity

The Varigty Club Childrens Charity provides a wide range of support to
sick, disabled and disadvantaged children. The money raised by the
charity helps to build paediatric units, donate Sunshine Coaches to
special schocls and to take groups of children on fun packed days out;
the Charity aims tp make a real difference 1o childrens' Jives.

Sunshine Coaches is a charity that provides children with the
opportunity to get out and about in order to enjoy local facilities and
discover the world at large through excursions and educational visits.
These coaches are specially adapted for children with special needs
and are donated 1o organisations which strive to improve the quality of
life for young pecple, something with which JJB is proud to be
associated.

Management and staff from JJB's Golf department, led by the Associate
Director of Equipment, Martin Wild, have organised charlty golf
tournaments for the Jast five years and the monies from the 2004 event
raised enough maney to purchase 6 Sunshine Coaches to add fo the 13
already purchased from the proceeds of earlier vears events.




Corporate social responsibility report comnues

Environmiental issues

In striving to achieve husiness objectives, JJB must act responsibly in
relation ta the impact of its activities on the local community and on the
environment at large and JJB has accordingly incorporated an
environmental management system within its overall risk management
framework. The Group recognises its responsibility to minimise
environmental impacts and through the effective management of
agreed action plang, expects to achieve this whilst defivering improved
buginess performance. JJB will centinue to be involved with selected
ingdices as described on page 24 of this Annual report, further
demonstrating the continuing commitment 0 be at the leading edge of
current environmental issues. The overafl approach to environmental
issues is incarporated within the core business management
pracesses, and is encapsulated within the following core principles;

= The reduction of adverse environmental impacts arising from the
Group's activities and operations,

» Ensuring effective and efficient use of materials ant eneray;
= Maintain a waste management system strategy which minimises

waste arising ang maximises waste recovery whilst ensuring,
wherever possible, responsible disposal methods;

Ensure compliance with relevant environmental laws, statutory
ohligations and codes of bast practice; and

Incorporate the principie of sustainabie developmeni through &
systematic approach to environmental management in crder to
achieve continual improvement.

Environmental actions

JJB, assisted by a team of environmental and sustainabiiity services
consultants, has performed a detailed assessment of its operational
environmental impacts. The most significant impacts are managed
through an Ervironmentat Managernent Systemn {EMS) and the Beard is
confident that the system provides the structure through which it
delivers its environmantai poficies across the Group. The EMS consists

of detailed action plang with named senior executive ownershin,
together with objectives and targets against which refative progress is
10 be monitored and reported upon. Over the Tast four years, JJB has
achigved the following:

C0- emissions have been calculated using DEFRA guidelines and
are monitored to minimise atmospheric impact. Improved distribution
methods have lead to & 20 per cent reduction in emissions;

* Energy consumption has risen by 12 per cent against & 22 per cent
increase in selling space and a 320 per cent increase in the number
of health ¢lubs;

-

Improved packaging techniques have resulted in a 4 per cent
increase in waste generation compared to an increase in the volume
of waste recycled of 25 per cent; and

-

Water consumption has increased by 92 per ¢ent although there has
been a 320 per cent increase in the number of hiealth clubs, all of
whigh incorporate swimming poats.

Further details of progress made and future targets, can be found within
the Environmental Management section of the JJB website.

Ethical labour standards

As a responghble Corporate Citizen, JJB seeks to provide its customers
with high quality value for money products, sourced from suppliers and
manufacturers who can clearly demonstrate compliance with the
Group's own cedes of practice as well as internationally accepted
standards.

JJB's Code of Business Ethics, the Supplier Code of Practice and the
Factory Code of Conduct, which are set out on the website
www.jjb.co.uk, have been accepted by JJB's principal suppliers and
saurce manufacturers, The Codes are based upon the internationally
accepted principles of the Ethical Trading Initiative Base Code of Labour
Standards and the Model Code of Conduct devised by the Wond
Federation of the Sporting Goods Industry.




JJB cares about the labour standards within ts global supply chain and
expects its suppliers tc demonstrate similar concerns. In order to obtain
assurance that the factories used by the Group's suppliers and source
manufacturers comply with the Factory Code of Conduct and so
promote sustained improvement in factory working conditions, a factory
inspection methodology has been rolled out with the assistance of a
speciaiist consuftancy and is performed by JJB's buyers when they
make visits to suppliers and source manufacturers’ factories.

Workplace
Within its workplace JJB applies the same level of commitment across
its stores, health clubs, Head office, Distriution centre and other
facilities, thereby ensuiing a safe, challenging and rewarding work
environment.

The Board recognises its responsibility for the maintenance of a safe
and heafthy workplace and work environment for employees and others
{customers, contractors, visitors and the general public) whe may be
affected by its work or undertakings. The Company poficy states that all
employees have a duty to act responsibly and take reasonable care for
the health and safety at work of themselves, their colleagues and
customers. Further responsibilities are placed upon senior management
and the Property Director is tasked with keeping the Board advised on
occupational health and safety matters.

LB is fully committed o the core principle of Equal Opportunity within
the workplace and adheres to high standards of employment practice.
The Group has detailed employment policies which are applied in a fair
manner o as to reward people fairly and provide appropriate levels of
personal development and training within a safe and healthy workplace,
The Group's policies are designed to value the human rights of all
emplayees, whether directly employed, sub-cantracted or employed
within the supply chain.

JJB is dedicated to the highest standards of openness, probity and
accountability. In line with that commitment, the Group encourages
employees and others with serious concerns eabout any aspect of the
Group's work to come forward and voice those concerns without fear of
reprisals. Normally any concemm about a workplace situation would be

raised with the employee’s immediate line manager or Head of
Department. However, it is recognised that this may be difficult in the
event of an issue being seripus or of a sensitive nature, especially
where the Group has so many places of work. To facilitate this contact,
JJB has intreduced a ‘Whistle Blowing' policy which encourages
employees to report undesirable practices through either a nominated
senior member of staff or through fts confidential and anonymous
telephone fine. In the case of concerns by customers, these would
normally be raised through the Customer Service Depariment,

JJB has distributed comprehensive procedures and policies to all retail
stores through its Retail Operations Manual, a copy of which is also
available on the JJB intranet.

The Manual containg comprehensive guidance together with copies of
policy documents which spell out JUB's stance on areas such as JJB's
Code of Business Ethics, Health and Safety and Equal Opportunities.

All of JUB's endeavours and initiatives across the corporate
responsibility spectrum are focused towards the provision of ethically
preduced, quality value for money products, through & safe and
satisfied workforce in a way that benefits the communitiss within which
the Group operates.




Directors’ remuneration report

For the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the Directors’
Remuneération Report Regulations 2002 which introduced new statutory
requirements for the disclosure of directors’ remuneration in respact of
periods ending on or after 31 Decernber 2002. The Report afso megts
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Finangial Services
Authority and describes how the Board has applied the Principles of
Good Governance relating to directors’ remuneration. As required by the
Regulations, & resclution to approve the Report will be proposed at the
Annuz' General Meeting of the Company.

The auditors are required fo report on the audited information within the
Report and fo state whethar in their opinicn that part of the Report has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.
The Report has therefore been divided ino separate sections for zudited
and unaudited information

Unaudited information

Constitution of the Cornmittee

The Rernuneration Committee is chaired by R. Lane-Smith and also
congists of A.G. Thomas and D.MM. Beever with the Chairman,
0. Whelan, attending as appropriate, fo give advice. D. Whelan does not
participate in the determination of bis awn retuneration package.

Remuneration of Executive Directors
The remuneration of Executive Directors is determined by the
Remuneration Committes.

The remuneration policy aims to ensure that the Executive Directors are
fairly rewarded for their individual contributions to the Group’s
performance and that remuneration packages are competitive with
regards to those of comparable public companies and, through a
performance refated bonus and the award of share optiens, incentivise
the Director concerned to improve the performance of the Group. The
elements of remuneration are a hasic salary, a performance refated
bonus, cetain taxable benefits, contributions made into Directors'
personal pension schemes and share options.

Basic salary

The basic salaries of Executive Directors are set by the Remuneration
Committee who take into consideration the fevels of salarigs of Directors
in similar sized public companies within the FTSE 250 index and which
are then tailored to individual experience, responsibility and performance.
This policy will be continued during the current accounting period.

28

Basic salaries were last reviewed in November 2003. The basic salary
of D. Whelan was not changed at that date; the basic salaries of
B.J.K. Dunn and J.D. Greenwood were backdated to 1 February 2003
and that of T.W. Knight was backdated to 1 September 2003.

On 1 July 2003, . Whelan notified the Company that with effect from
that date he would waive payment of his basic salary until further notice;
[, Whelan recommenced to draw his salary on 1 April 2004.

Performance related bonus

The Executive Directors are entitled to a performance related bonus
scheme to which members of the Associate Director Board of JJB are
also entiled. This bonus iakes the form of an amnual paymert,
calculated as a percentage of basic salary, based upon the pre-tax
profits of the Group but dependent upon profit targets being achieved.
No entittement was eamed in respect of the 53 weeks ended 30
January 2005. The bonus scheme is set over three years which
commenced from the accounting period ended 25 January 2004 and a
bonus will be payable at the end of the fourth year, representing an
amount equal to any bonus paid in the three previous years, provided
the Executive Director or Associate Director is still in the Company's
employment at the and of the fourth year.

The maximum ameount payable in any one of the first three years of this
scheme is limited to 40 per cent of the Director's basic salary

Taxable benefits

Executive Directors are eligble for taxable benefits, which include
membership of 2 prvate medical scheme and the provision of a
comparty car with payment of its operating expenses, including private
mileage, or the payment of a monthly lump sum towards the costs
incurred on business travel in their own car.

Pensions

The Executive Directors make contribttions to their own persona!
pension schemes and the Company contribltes & similar amount inte
those schemes, limited to a fixed percentage of their basic salary.




1999 Share Option Schemes

Grants of share options to Executive Girectors are at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee. Grants are intended to promote a longer term
involvemnent in the weli-being of the Company and to give capital growth
benefits for the option holders. Options are not routinely granted but
made on an individual basis to reflect either increased responsibility and
promotion or as part of the remuneraticn package on being appointed an
Executive Director.

The maximum value of options to be granted to any employee under the
1999 Appraved Share Option Scheme is restricted to £30,000. In
addition, options can be granted under the 1998 Unapproved Share
Option Scheme, the maximum number being calculated by a formula
which restricts the vaiue of the options granted to any employee tc four
times their basic salary, less the valug of any options granted under the
1999 Approved Share Opticn Scheme.

The exercise of share options is subject to performance conditions
requiring various growths in earnings per ordinary share of the Group,
over at least three consecutive financial periods. In respect of the share
options granted to D. Whelan and J.D. Greenwood, on which the expiry
date is 2009, the performance condition attaching to the options was &
growth in Group earnings per ordinary share of more than 10 per cent par
annum plus the percentage increase in the Retail Price index, for the
option to be fully exercisable. For all share options issued subsequently,
the performance condition has been a growth in Group earnings per
ordinary share of more than 4 per cent per annum plus the percentage
increase in the Retall Price indax, For the options to be exercisable in
relation fo half the shares subject to any cption, the increass in gamings
per ordinary share was to be half the annual rates quoted above, plus the
percentage increase in the Retail Price Index.

Details of share options held by Executive Directors are set out in the
table on page 31 of this Report.

Contracts of Service

The service contracts of all the Executive Directors have no fixed term
and were terminable on three months notice by either party until May
2004 when the Remuneration Committee increased the rotice period to
6 moanths.

In addition, the service contract of TW. Knight contains a change of
control clause which provides for twelve months notice in the event of
a change of control of the Group.

The service centracts of D. Whelan and J.D. Greenwood were dated 10
November 1994, B.JK. Dunn's was dated 7 June 1996 and T.W.
Knight's was dated 11 July 2003.

The letter of appointment of A.G. Thomas was dated 13 April 1995, R.
Lane-Smith's was dated 13 January 1999 and D.M.M. Beever's was
dated 26 May 2000.

Remuneration of Non-executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-executive Cirectors is determined by the
Chairman after consultation with the other Executive Directors, and after
taking into account the performance of the Non-executive Directors in
the accounting period and the levels of remuneration paid by
comparable public companies. The Diractors fees of the Mon-executive
Directors were last reviewed in November 2003 and the increase in fees
backdated to 1 February 2003.

The Non-executive Directors do not receive any pension or other benefits
from the Corpany, nor do they pariicipate in any bonus, incentive or
share option schemes.

Non-executive Directors have three-year service contracts with the
Company, terminable on three months natice by either party.




Directors’ remuneration report cone

Performance graph of Total Shareholder Return

The graph below shows the Group’s Total Shargholder Return (TSR) compared to the FTSE General Retail Index over the last five years. TSR is defined
as the share price growth plus reinvested dividends, The index chosen for the comparison demonstrates the Group’s TSR in comparison to the average
for companies operating in the same sector.
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Audited information
Directors’ detailed emoluments

Details of individual Directors’ emcluments fer the accounting period were as follows:

Fees as Additional Basic  Performance Taxable Pensicn 2005 2004
Directors  remuneration salary  related bonus benefits  contributions Total Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Executive Directors:
D. Whelan - - 250 - 26 - 276 214
TW. Kright - - 200 - 13 2 335 346
J.B. Greenwood - - 235 - 25 8 268 310
B.JK. Dunn - - 195 - 22 8 225 268
G.W. Foster - - - - - - 228
Non-executive Directors
A.G. Thomas 28 - - - - - 28 45
R. Lang-Smith 28 - - - - - 28 33
D.M.M. Beever 28 - - - - - 28 34
Total 84 - 980 - 86 38 1,188 1,480
2004 total 84 29 982 220 112 53

Ail Directors served throughaut the two accounting periods covered by the table with the exception of G.W. Foster who resigned on 14 November 2003.

D. Whelan waived payment of his basic salary between 1 July 2003 and 31 March 2004; the amount of basic salary shown in the table includes the amount paid
fo himi from 1 April 2004 to 30 January 2005.

Included in the abave table is £6,875 (2004 - £32,800} paid to a third party in respact of the services of R, Lane-Smith and £NIL (2004 - £18,000) paid to a
thied party in respact of the services of AG. Thomas.




Share options

Directors beneficial imterests in share options at the beginning and the end of the accounting period, were as follows:

Number of 5p ordinary shares
Scheme Share oplions Share options Share options Exercise Date from Expiry
at heginning of granted during the at end of price which date
accounting period acoourting period  accounting period {pence) exercisable
D. Whelan 1999 Unapproved 549,200 - 649,200 184.84 17.02.02 16.02.09
1999 Unapproved - 100,000 100,000 253.00 27.05.07 26.05.14
Total 649,200 100,00C 749,200
TW. Knignt 1999 Unaporoved 250,000 - 250,000 150.20 12.10.05 11.10.12
1899 Unapproved - 250,000 250,000 253.00 27.05.07 26.05.14
Total 250,000 250,000 500,000
J.0. Greeawocd 1399 Approved 15,800 - 15,800 189.84 18.05.02 17.05.08
1939 Unapproved 330,000 - 330,000 184.84 17.02.02 16.02.08
1989 Unapproved - 175,000 175,000 253.00 27.05.07 26.05.14
Total 345,800 175,000 520,800
B.J.K. Dunn 1993 Unapproved 125,000 125,000 253.00 27.0507 26.05.14
Total 1,245,000 650,000 1,895,000

No opticns were exercised during the year.

The exercise of options under both schemes is subject to performance conditions that require various growths in earnings per ordinary share as set out

on page 29.

The market price of 5 pence ordinary shares on Friday 28 January 2005 was 208 pence and the range during the accounting period was 177 pence to

327 pence.

Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company at the beginning of the accounting period, and the end of the accounting period were as follows:

30 January 2005
Number of 5p ordinary shares

Beneficial Nen-heneficial
D. whelan 28,426,010 29,073,040
TW. Knight 100,000 -
J.D. Greenwoed 479,278 -
8.JK. Dunn - -
AG. Thomas 30,000 -
R. Lane-Smith 445100 -
0.M.M. Beever 70,200 -

28,533,306

25 January 2004
Number of bp ordinary shares
Beneficial Non-beneficial
29,073,040
100,000 -
479,278 -

36,000
58,100 -
104,200 -

There have been no changes in Directors interests since 30 January 2005, other than the sale of 10,000 ordinary shares on 15 April 2005 by A.G. Themas and
the simuitaneous purchase of 10,000 ordinary shares in the name of a company in which A.G. Thomas has 100 per cent beneficial ownership.

R. Lane-Smith
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
26 May 2005
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of JJB Sports plc

For the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005

We have audited the Financial statements of JJB Sports Plc for the 53
weeks ended 30 January 2005 which comprise the Profit and loss
account, the Balance sheets, the Cash flow statement, the Statements of
total recognised gains and losses, and the related notes 1 to 31 together
with the Reconciligtions of movements in shareholders’ funds and the
Statement of accounting policies. These Financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting palicies set out therein. We have also
gudited the information in the part of the Directors™ remungration repert
that is describad as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Gur audit work
has been undertaken S0 that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are requiced to state 10 them in an auditors’ teport and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone cther than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As descrited in the statement of Directors’ responsitilities on page 23 of the
Anpual report, the Company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
iaw and accounting standards. They are alse respensible for the preparation
of the other information contained In the Annual report including the
Directors’ remuneration report. Qur responsibility is to audit the Financial
statements and the part of the Directors' remuneration report described as
having been audited in accordance with relevant United Kingdem legal and
regulatory requirements and auditing standards.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Financial statements give a
{rug and fair view and whether the Financial statements and the par of the
Directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also
report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ report is net consistent with the
Financial statements, if the Company has not kept proper accounting
records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding Directors’
remuneration and transactions with the Company and other members of the
Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate governance report reflects the
Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Senvices
Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required fo consider
whether the Board's statements on irtemal control cover all risks and
contrals, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's comorate
govemance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the Directors' report and the other information contained in the
Annual report for the above accounting period as described in the Contents
section including the unaudited part of the Directors’ remuneration report
and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Financial
statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom auditing
standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the Financial statements and the part of the Directors®
remuneration report described as having been audited. 1t also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
Directors in the preparation of the Financial statements and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company
and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report described as
having been audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or other irregUlarity or error. In forming our opirion, we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
Financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report
described as having been audited.

Cpinion

In our opinion:

o the Financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group as at 30 January 2005 and of the profit
of the Group for the accounting period then ended; and
the Financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration
report described as having been audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Deloitts & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Audftors

Manchester

26 May 2005




Consolidated profit and loss account

For the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005

Turnover

Cost of sales (ncluding exceptional operating tems)

Grass profit

Other net operating expenses (ncluding goodwil
amartisation and exceptional cperating items)

Operating profit

Operating profit before goodwill amortisation
and exceptional operating items

Goodwill amortisation

Exceptional operating iems

- creation of legal penalty provision
- refease of legal cost accrual

- other

Loss on disposal of subsidiary uncertakings

Interest receivable and similar income

Interest payable and simitar charges

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxgtion on profit on ordinary activities

Profit on prdinary activities after taxation
Dividends paid and propased

Retained profit for the period

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation,

goodwill amortisation, exceptional operating items
and loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings

Undertying headline eamings per ordinary share

Eamings per ordinary share
Diluted eamings per ordinary share

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

30 January 29 January

2005 2004

Continuing Continuing Ciscontinued
Notes operations operations operations Total
£'000 £1000 £000 £'000
1 773,339 72 168,040 929,812
(402,082} {395,824) (102,041) (504 B85
3n.257 376,148 48,999 425,147
2 (320,918) (307,000} (46,825) (353825
50,339 69,148 2,174 71322
63,328 87978 2,523 90,501
12 (12,989) (12,753 (349 {13,102

3

(2,000} - -
2,000 - - -
- 6077 - 6.077)
14f) {309) (852) 852)
4 9,036 7,149
5 (8.692) {9,781)
] 50,374 67,838
8 {17,175) (22,376)
33,199 45,462
10 (23,080) {23,297
23 10,119 22165
63,672 87.869
1 2012p 26.99p
11 14,380 19.27p
1 14.34p 19.23p

A statement of movements on reserves is given in note 23 in the Notes to the financial statements on page 49.

The accompanying Statement of accounting policies and Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this Consolidated profit and loss accourt.




Statements of total recognised

gains and losses

For the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
Exchange rate movement

Total recognised gains refating to the period

Reconciliations of movements

in shareholders’ funds

For the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005

Retained profit for the periog

Exchange rate movement

Praceeds of share issues
Consideration paid on purchase of own shares
(Opening shareholders’ funds

Closing shareholders’ funds

Group
53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
33,199 45,482
(21) 223
33,178 45,685
Group

53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 2000
10,119 22,165
1) 223
10,098 22,388
92 5,440

(20,778)
353,003 325,175
342,415 353,003

Company
53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£000 2000
28,249 40,894
28,249 40,894
Company
53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£000 £'000
5,1 17,597
5,169 17,597
92 5,440
(20,778} -
309,976 286,939
294,459 309,976

The accampanying Statement of accounting policies and Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the above Statements.




Balance sheets

As at 30 January 2005
Group Company
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
Notes 2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £'000 £'000 £7000
Fixed assels
Intangible assets — goodwill 12 173,125 186,347 196 209
Tangible assats 13 165,175 155,791 151,617 140,037
Investments 14(3) - - 289,161 290,104
338,300 342,138 440,974 430,350
Current assets
Stocks 15 112,119 128,084 92,429 102,467
Debtors 186 12,181 11,481 14,106 16,500
Current asset investments 17 168,117 210,478 168,117 210,478
Cash at bank and in hand 29,323 41,258 20,025 17,355
322,340 391,301 294,677 345 800
Current Eabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Borowings 18 {193,067) {170,478) (297,768) {170,478)
Others 18 {99,269) {100,987 (121,134) {191,489
{292,336) {271,465 (418,952) {361,967
Net current assets (liabilities) 30,004 119,836 (124,275) {15,167
Total assels tess curvent liabilites 368,304 461,974 316,609 415183
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bomrowings 19 - 84.821) - {84,821)
Cthers 19 {7,517 (7,559) (7,028} 6,973
(7,577 (92,380) (7,028} (91794)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 21 (18,312) {16,591) (15,212 (13,413
Net assets 342,415 353,003 294,459 309,976
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 22 11,538 11,899 11,538 11,899
Share premium account 23 157,219 157,129 157,219 157,129
Capital redemption reserve 23 1,069 706 1,069 706
Profit and loss account 23 172,589 183,269 124,633 140,242
Equity shareholders’ funds 342,415 353,003 294,459 309,976

The accompanying Statement of accourting pelicies and Notes to the financial statemeants are an integral part of these Balance sheets.

Signed on behalf of the Board

D. Whelan
Chairman
26 May 2005




Consolidated cash flow statement

For the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005

Met cash inflow from operating activities

Refurns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash inflow (outflow)

Taxation

UK corporation tax paid

Foreign tax paid

Net cash outflow

Capital expenditure

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Sale of tangible fixed assets

Net cash outflow

Acquisition and disposals

Purchase of subsidiary undertaking
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking

Net cash disposed with subsidiary undertzaking
Net cash inflow

Equity dividends patd

Cash inflow before management of

liuid resources and financing

Management of liquid resources
Tender offer cash deposit

Financing
Issues of ordinary share capital

Decrease in foans
Purchase of own shares

Net cash outfiow

{Decrease) increase in cash i the period

53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
Notes 30 January 2005 25 January 2004
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
24 103,968 77,707
9,036 7,149
(8,563) (9,358)
473 (2,208)
(18,366) (24,564)
(152} (2986)
(18,518) {24,860)
{42,982) (34,670)
8,392 1,977
{34,590) (32,693
- (8)
495 45,421
- {228)
495 45,188
(23,077) {18,899
28,751 45,234
25 40,000 {40,000
g2 5,440
25 (60,000) (6.667)
{20,778} -
(80,686) (1.227)
25 {11,935) 4,007

The disposal of T Hughes Limited in the accounting period ended 25 January 2004 resufted in an adverse cash flow of £12,175,000 affecting the Group's
net cash inflow from operating activities. The disposal aiso resulted in adverse cash flows relaling to retums on investments and senvicing of finance of
£209,000, UK corporation tax paid of £159,000 and purchase of tangihle fixed assets of £4,222,000.

The accompanying Statemert of accounting policies and Notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this Consolidated cash flow statement.




Statement of accounting policies

For the 53 weeks ended 30 January 2005

The principat Group accounting policies are set out below. The policies
have all been applied consistently throughout the current and praceding
accounting periods.

Accounting period
Every accounting period ends on the Sunday which falls before, but closast
to 31 January, resulting in accounting periods of either 52 or 53 waeks.

Basis of accounting
The Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with applicable accounting standards,

Basis of consolidation

The acquisition method of accounting has been adopted under which the
results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of in the
accounting period are included in the Consolidated profit and loss
account from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal.

In the Company’s Financial statements, investments in subsidiary
undertakings are stated at cost less an amcunt representing goodwil
written off to reserves in 1988. Provisions for temporary fluctuations in
value are net made, Only dividends received and receivable are credited
to the Company's Profit and loss account.

No Profit and loss account is presented for JJB Sports ple, as permitted
by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985.

Goodwill
Goodwill consists of;

+ Goodwill purchased on the acquisition of unincorporated businesses
which s stated at cost. Amortisation has been provided to write off
the cost of this goodwill over its estimated usefu! life in equal annual
instalments based upon the unexpired period of the property lease
which refates to the business acquired; and

s Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings
{representing the excess of the tair value of the consideration given
over the fair vaiue of the separately identifiabie net assets acquired,
fogether with 2ssociated costs). Goodwill arising on acquisitions during
and since the accounting period ended 31 January 1999 is being
amortised over twenty years. Goodwill arising on acquisitions in earlier
accourting periods was written off against reserves on acquisition and
waould be charged or credited in the Profit and loss account on the
subsequent disposal of the business to which it related.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation. Depreciation
is provided using the straight-line method at rates calculated to write off
the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset over its expected
useful economic life, as follows:

Freehold property 40 years
Short leasehold property  Period of lease
Plant, fixtures and fittings ~ 5-20 years

Investments
Fixed asset investrnents are shown at cost, less provision for impairment.

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Provision
is made for obsolete, slow moving or damaged items where appropriate.

Taxation

Curment tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at
amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the fax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date,

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all iming differences that have
originated but net reversed at the Balanoe sheet date where fransactions
or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right
to pay less fax in the future, have occurred at the Balance sheet date.
Timing Cifferences are differences between the Group’s taxable profits and
it results as siated in the Financial statements that arise from the
inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from
those in which they are recognised in the Financial statements.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore
recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be
regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits
from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be
deducted.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to
apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.
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Statement of accounting policies contnes

Foreign cutrencies
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in the local
currency at actual exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
end of the accounting period are reported at the rates of exchange
prevailing at that date. Any gain or joss arising from a change in
exchange rates subsequent to the date of the fransaction is included as
an exchange gain or loss in the Profit and foss account.

For the purpose of censalidation, the closing rate methed is used, under
which transtation gains or losses are shown as a movement on reserves.
The Profit and joss accounts of the foreign subsidiary undertakings are
translated af the average exchange rate for the accounting peried.

Operating leases

The Group's principal lezsed assets are land and buildings acquired under
operating leases which are generally subject to periodic rent reviews.
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis.

Any contributions receivable on acquiring short leasehold properties are
credited to the Balance sheet and released to the Profit and loss account
over the term of the lease. Rent free periods are treated as deferred
income and are releasad to operating profit over the accounting periods up
o the date of the first rent review.

The cost of other operating leases in respect of plant, fixtures and
fittings s charged to operating profit en a straight line basis over the
accounting periods of the lease.

Debt

Debt is initially stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of
issue costs. The carrying amount is increased by the finance cost in respect
of the accounting period and reduced by payments made in the period,

Turnover
Turnover represents sales of goeds through retail stores and income

generated from the provision of sports and leisure faciities, excluding

VAT, in the normal course of business.

Tumover gengrated from the provision of sports and leisure faciities is
recorded in the accounting period during which the facility is made
avaitable to members.

Pension costs

For defined benefit schemes operated by T.J. Hughes Ltd, which was
disposed of on 14 November 2003, the amount charged to the Profit and
loss account in respect of pension costs and other post-retirement
benefits, in the accounting periods during which T..J. Hughes Limited was
a subsidiary, was the estimated regular cost of providing the benefits
accrued in the accounting period, adjusted to reflect variations from that
cost. The regular cost was calculated so that it represented a
substantially level percentage of current and future payroll. Variations
from regular cost were charged or credited to the Profit and loss account
as a constant percentage of payroll over the estimated average
remaining working life of scheme members. Defined benefit schemes
were funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those
of the Group, in separate fustee administersed funds. Differences
between the amounts charged to the Proft and loss account and
amounts funded were shown as either provisions or prepayments in the
Balance sheet.

For defined contribution schemes, the amount charged to the Profit and
toss account in respect of pension costs and other retirement benefits
represents the contributions payable in the accounting period,
Differences between contributions payable in the accounting period and
contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments
on the Balance sheet.




Notes to the financial statements

1 Segmental information

Turnover, profit on ordinary activities before {axation and net assets by class of business were as follows:
Profit on ordinary

Turncver activities before taxation Net assets
53 weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended ended ended
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £:000 £'000
Gontinuing operations
JJB retail steres 710,647 727,377 42,503 68,122 100,366 123,349
Leisure Division (including associated retall stores) 62,692 44,395 7,836 7,103 64,551 46,870
773,339 77,772 50,339 75,225 164,917 170,219
Discontinued operations
TJ Hughes - 168,040 - 2,174 -
Turnover 773,339 929,872
50,339 77,399 164,917 170,219
Excepticnal aperating ftems - 6,077)
Loss on disposal on subsidiary undertakings {309) (852)
Wet interest receivable (payable) 344 (2,632)
Net funds (debt} 4,373 (3,563)
Goodwill 173,125 186,347
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 50,374 67,838
Net assets 342,415 353,003

Turnover, profit on ordinary activities before taxation and net assets by geographical origin were as follows:
Profit on ordinary

Turnover activities befare taxation Net assets
53 weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended ended ended
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
UK continuing operations 764,829 760,277 43,876 74,366 166,670 169,573
UK discontinued operations - 158,040 - 2174 - -
Europe {exciuding UK) 8,510 11,495 1,463 859 {1,753) 646
Turnover 773,339 929,812
50,339 77,398 164917 170,219
Exceptional operating items - 6,077
Loss on disposal on subsidiary undertakings {309) (852)
Net interest receivable (payable) 344 (2,832)
Net funds (debt) 4373 (3,563)
Goodwill 173,125 186,347
Peofit on ordinary activities before taxation 50,374 67,838
Net assets 342,415 353,003

Turnover by destination is not materially different to that by geographical origin.




Notes to the financial statements cominues

2 Other net operating expenses (including goodwill amertisation and exceptional operating items)

53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended

30 January 25 January
2005 2004

Continuing  Discontinued

operations operatigng Total
£'000 £:000 £:000 £'000
Sefling and distribution costs 282,355 262,759 41,848 304,607
Administration expenses
- goodwill amortisation 12,989 12,763 349 13,302
- gxceptional operating tems (see note 3} - 6,077 - 8,077
- gther 28,962 29,824 4,628 34,452
41,951 48,654 4,977 53,631
Other gperating income (3,388) (4,413) - (4,413
Other net operating expenses (including goodwilt
amortisation and exceplional operating items}) 320,018 367,000 46,825 353,825
Other net operating expenses before goodwill
amortisation ang exceptional operating items 307,929 288,170 46,476 334,646
3 Exceptional operating items
53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 Janvary
2005 2004
£°000 £'000
Cost of sales:
Creation of legal penalty provision {see note 21) 2,000 .
Release of legal cost accrual (2,000) -
Operaling expenses:
Lesses on closure of certain flagship stores and the subsequent disposal of the leases to those stores - 5,272
Legal costs incurred on the abortive management buy-out of the Group - 805
- 6,077
4 Interest receivable and similar income
53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£:000 £9000
Interest on bank deposits 1,138 800
interest on loan note deposit 7,898 6,349
9,036 7,149




9 Interest payable and similar charges

53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Interest on bank toans and overdrafts 1,788 4,142
Interest an foan notes 8,775 5,216
Finance costs 129 423
8,692 9,781
6 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Prafit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging:
Staff costs (see note 7) 105,651 122,831
Goodwill amortisation {2,889 13,102
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 23,834 25,919
Loss on saie of tangible fixed assets 835 3,615
Operating 1ease rentals
- lang and buildings 84,891 92,252
- plant, fixtures and fittings 1,637 1,967
Anditors” remuneration
- statutery augit fees a1 75
- nen-audit services 81 150

In addition to fees paid to the aucitors for audit services, fees for non-audit services paid by the company to Deloitte & Touche LLP amounted to £81,000
(2004 - £150,000), in respect of accountancy, Vat, payroll and taxation work which the auditors were best pfaced 1o perform.

7 Staff Costs

53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 £'000

a) The aggregate remuneration comprised:
Wages and salaries 99,045 115,046
Social security costs 6,461 7,245
Pension costs 45 640
105,651 122931
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Notes 1o the financial statements coniues

7 Staif Costs continued
Average number of employees

Full time equivaients

53 weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks
ended anded ended ended
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
Number Number Number Number
b} The average number of persons employed by the Group

during the accounting period was as follows:
Sales and distribution 10,921 13,754 7,988 9,667
Administration 565 649 565 649
11,486 14,403 8,553 10,316

The above information includes Directors remuneration and the numbers of Directors, full details of which can be found in the Directors’ remuneration report on

pages 28 tc 31 of the Annual report.

8 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 Janary 25 January
2005 2004
The taxation charge comprises: £1000 £000
Current taxation
UK corporation tax 17,205 23,350
Dverseas tax 208 285
17,413 23,635
Adjustments in respect of prior years
- UK corporation tax 41 (1,538
Total current taxation 17,454 22,097
Deferred taxation
Origtnation and reversal of timing differences (279) 279
Total deferred taxation {see note 21) {279) 279
Total taxation an profit en ordinary activities

17,175 22,376

The ditferences between the effective rate of total current taxation, expressed as a percentage of the profit on ardinary activities before taxation and the

standar¢ rate of UK comoration tax, is as follows:

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

30 January 25 January

2005 2004

% %

UK corporation tax rate 30,0 30.0
Goodwill amortisation 7.8 58
Non aflowable loss on the disposal of subsidiary undertzking 0.2 0.4
{Qverseas tax differentials 0.6) {0.4)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes {0.4) {0.5)
Qrigination and reversal of timing differences {2.9) 0.4
Prior year UK corporation tax 0.1 (2.3
Effective rate of total current taxation on profit on ordinary activities 346 326
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9 Profit attributable to JJB Sports pie

The profit atter taxation and geoawill amortisation for the accounting period dealf with in the Financial statements of the parent company, JJB
Sports plo, was £28,249,000 (2004 - £40,894,000). As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, no separate Profit and loss account is
presented in respect of the parent company.

10 Dividends paid and proposed

53 weeks 52 weeks
Pence per Number of ended ended
ordinary ordinary shares on 30 January 25 January
shase which paid/proposed 2005 2004
£000 £'000
Interim dividend paid 10 Degember 2003 3.00 235,295,116 - 7.059
Final dividend paid 14 July 2004 7.00 230,717,049 Lo 16,150
Interim dividend paig 10 December 2004 3.00 230,768,861¢ 5,923 -
Final dividend proposed payable 18 July 2005 7.00 230,766,612 16,154 -
Undemprovision in respect of dividends paid in earlier years 3 a8
23,080 23,297
Total dividends per ¢rdinary share 10.00p 10.00p
11 Eamings per ordinary share
53 weeks 52 weeks
ended anded
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£000 £'000
Underlying headling earings:
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation but before goodwill amortisation, exceptional operating items
net of tax and the loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings 46,497 63,670
Goodwill amortisation {12,989) {13,102
Exceptional operating items net of tax
- Creation of legat penalty provision (1,400}
- Releasg of legal cost accrual 1,400 -
- Losses on closure of certain flagship stores and the subsequent disposal of the leases 10 those stores - (3,690)
- Legal costs incurred on the abortive management buy-out of the Group - 564)
Lass on disposal of subsidiary undertakings (309) 852)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation, goodwill amortisation, exceptional operating items
net of 1ax and loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings 33199 45,462
Nurnber of ordinary shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue {thousands) 231,127 235,924
Exercise of share options {thousands) 307 494
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 231,434 236418
Undertying headline eamings per ordinary share 20.12p 26.99p
Eamnings per ordinary share 14.36p 19.27p
Diluted earnings pes ordinary share 14.34p 19.23p

Underlying headiine earnings per ordinary share have been calculated on the basis of profit on ordinary activities after taxation but before goodwill
amortisation, exceptional operating items net of tax and the loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings. The Directors censider that this gives a betier
understanding of the Group’s underlying eamings.
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Notes to the financial statements conines

12 Intangible fixed assets - goodwill

Cost
At 25 January 2004
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking

At 30 January 2005

Amortisation

At 25 January 2004

Charge

Disposal of subsidiary undertaking

At 30 January 2005

Net book value
At 25 January 2004

At 30 January 2005

13 Tangible fixed assets

Group

GCost

At 25 January 2004

Additions

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiary undertaking
Exchange rate movement

A1 30 January 2005

Depreciation

At 25 January 2004

Charge

Dispasals

Disposal of subsidiary undertaking
Exchange rate movement

At 30 January 2005

Net hook value
At 25 January 2004

At 30 January 2005

Group Company
£'000 £'000
255,143 i
(287) -
254,856 3
68,796 132
12,989 13
4 -
81,731 145
186,347 209
173,125 196

Short Plant,

Freehold leasehcld fixtures
property propenty and fittings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
20,487 17,540 218,721 256,748
. 70 2031 40,881 42,982
(2,15% (194) (22,279) (24,632
(136} 697 (330} {1,163
- 12 27 39
18,262 18,692 237,020 273,974
2,436 2,858 95,663 100,957
468 565 22,811 23,834
(391} (104) 14,910) (15,405)
1o (337) (243 (590)
- - 3 2
2,503 2972 103,324 108,799
18,061 14,682 123,058 155,791
15,758 15,720 123,696 165,175




13 Tangible fixed assets continued

Company

Cost

At 25 January 2004
Additions

Transfers to group companies
Disposals

At 30 January 2005
Depreciation

At 29 January 2004

Charge

Transfers to group companies
Disposals

At 30 January 2006

Net book value
At 25 January 2004

At 30 January 2005

14 Invesiments
a) Subsidiary undertakings

Cost at 25 January 2004
Agditions
Dispasals

Cost at 30 January 2005

Prowision for impairment at 25 January 2004 and 30 January 2005

Net book value

Short Plart,

Freehold leaseheld fixtures
property property and fittings Total
£9000 £'000 £1000 2000
19,914 14,361 178,854 213129
70 1,948 37,524 39,542
- - 81} @81
(2,000% (€5 (15,808 (17,873
17,934 16,244 200,489 234,17
2191 1,784 89,117 73,092
454 452 19,678 20,584
- - 10 10
(354) 64) {10,168) {10,586)
2,291 2172 78,637 83,100
17,723 12,577 109,737 140,037
15,693 14,072 121,852 151,617

Company

30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
290,341 334,406
- 5
{043) (44,070)
289,398 290,341
(237) {237)
289,161 290,104

Goodwill of £237,000, which arose on the acguisition of a subsidiary in 1988, was written off against reserves in that accounting period.

Details of investments in subsidiary undertakings were as follows:

Place of Issued share
incorporation capital held Activity
Blane Leisure Limited Scotland 100% Retailer of sportswear and sports equipment
Sports Division (Eireanry Limited Eire 100% Retailer of sportswear and sports equipment
JJB Sports Netherlands BY Netherlands 100% Retailer of sportswear and sports equipment
JJB Card Services Limited England 100% Provider of credit card processing services 1o the Group
JJB Sports Empleyment Limited England 100% Provider of employee services to the Group
DWF Sports Limited Englard - Golf driving range operater and retailer of sportswear and sports equipment

Bormant companies are not fisted in the above table.

{disposed of 17 June 2004)




Notes to the financial statements conies

14 Investments continued
b} Disposal of subsidiary undertaking

53 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

30 January 25 January

2005 2004

£'000 £000

Disposal proceeds 500 47,000
Expenses @) (579
Net disposal proceeds 495 46,421

Net assets at cate of disposal (571) (39,303

Unamortised goodwill (233) (7.970)

Loss on disposal {309) 852

The subsidiary disposed of in the accounting period ended 30 January 2005, was DWF Sports Limited and the subsidiary disposed of in the accounting peried
ended 25 January 2004, was TJ Hughes Limited.

15 Stocks
Group Company
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Goods for resals 112,719 128,084 82429 102,467

The net replacement value of stock is nat considered to be materially different from that stated in the Balance sheet.

16 Debtors
Group Company

30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade debtors 618 629 658 680
Other debtors and prepayments 11,563 10,852 9,258 7,735
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertzkings - - 4190 8,085
12,181 11,481 14,106 16,500

17 Current asset investments Group and Gompany
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£°000 £000
Loan note deposit 168,117 170,478
Tender offer cash deposit - 40,600
168,117 210,478




18 Greditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Borrowings
Bank averdraft
Bark loan (note 20)
Loan notes

Others
Trade creditors and accruals
Corporation tax
Value added tax
Other taxes and social security costs
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Proposed dividend
Deferred lease incentives

100,987

Group Company

30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£000 £'000 £7000 £'000

- - 104,701
24,950 - 24,950 -
168,117 170,478 168,117 170,478
193,067 170,478 297,768 170,478
62,304 58,639 57,043 50,694
11,239 12,303 4712 7,363
6,586 9,041 3,285 5,335
1,670 3,636 1,657 1,727
- - 37,094 108,065
16,154 16,150 16,154 16,150
1,316 1,218 1,279 1,155
99,269 121,184 191,489

Laan notes were issued to the vendors of Blang Leisure Limited (Sports Division) in September 1898, as part of the consideration for the acquisition of that
Company and fts subsidiaries, under an instrument which provided that the notes were redeemable on quarterly interest payment dates after 11 June 1999. By

a Deed of Variation dated 26 February 2001, the maturity date up to which the foan notes can be redesmed was extended to 28 April 20086.

interest is payable on the loan notas at a quarterly rate linked to UBOR and the loan notes are secured by an identical amount held in & bank account and shown

under curent assets as “Current asset investments” (see nate 17).

19 Greditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Bomowings
Bank loan (note 20)

Others
Deferred fease incerfives

20 Bank loan

The bank ioan represents:
Principal loan
Unamoriised finance costs

Amount falling due within one year (note 18}
Amount falling due after mare than one year (note 19)

Group Company
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£7000 £'000 £'000 £:000
- 84,821 - 84,521
7577 7,559 7,028 6,973
Groug Gompany
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
25,000 85,000 25,000 85.0C0
(50) (179 (50) 179
24,950 84,821 24,950 84,821
24,950 - 24,950 -
- 84,621 - 84,821
24,950 84,821 24,950 24,821

The bark lpan at 30 January 2005 compriseg £24,950,000 aiter unamortised finance costs, being the balange of a £100 million revolving bank credit facility

avaitabie to the Group for less than one year, expiring or 23 June 2005,
Interest is chargeable on the bank loan at floating rates linked to LIBOR.

At 30 January 2005, there was an undrawn facility available to the Group of £75 million (2004 - £15 million) under the revolving bank credit facility.
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21 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group Gompany
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £°000 £'000 £:000
Deferred taxation 16,312 16,591 13,212 13,413
Legal penalty (see note 29) 2,000 - 2,000
18,312 16,581 15,212 13,413
The movements in the accounting period ware as follows:
Legal penalty Deferred taxation
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 25 January 2004 - - 16,591 13,413
Charge (release) to profit and loss account 2,000 2,000 279) {201}
At 30 January 2005 2,000 2,000 16,312 13,212
Deferved taxation
Group
Amount provided Amount unprovided
30 January 25 Janyary 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £1000 £'000 £'000

Deferred taxation provided and deferred taxation not provided are as follows:
Accelerated capital allowances 16,312 16,5¢1 - -

Gains deferred by rollover refief 251 251
16,312 16,591 251 251
Gompany

Amount provided Amount unprovided
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances 13,212 13,413 - -
Gains deferred by roltover relief - - 31 251
13,212 13,413 251 251

Legal penalty

The Group has made a provision of £2 miflion against 2 legal penalty levied by the Office of Fair Trading of £8.4 million conceming price-fidng in the sale of certain replica
kit products during 2000 and 2001, Gn 19 May 2005 the Cornpetition Appeal Tribuna! (CAT) reduced this penalty to £6.7 million; however, JB is intending 1o seek permission
for lgave to appeal to the Court of Appeal against the CAT's decision in relation to importart aspects of their decision on the liability and the level of the penatty itself,

The final amount of the penatty due will only be determined at the end of the appeal prooess. Based upon legal advice, the Board currently regard a £2 million provision
as being adequate.

22 Called-up share capital
a) Authorised and issued share capital

Ordinary shares of 5p
Autharised Allotted, calied-up and fully paig
£000 Number £'000 Number
At 25 January 2004 16,580 331,600,000 11,899 237,967,889
Share buy-back by Tender offer - - (363) (7,250,840)
Issued on exercise of options - - 2 49,570
At 30 January 2005 16,580 331,600,000 11,538 230,766,619




22 Called-up share capital continued
b) Share oplion schemes

Kumber of ordinary
shares of 5 each Exercige
Date of grant at 30 January 2005 price per share

The Company has outstanding options uncer the following schemes:

) 199% Unapproved Scheme 17 February 1992 1,116,320 184.84p
13 November 2000 60,000 205.17p
30 January 2001 120,000 260.25p
16 April 2001 413516 370.00p
12 October 2002 250,000 150.20p
26 May 2004 650,000 253.00p
23 November 2004 832,401 200.75p
{i 1999 inland Revenue Approved Scheme 18 May 199G 142,200 189.84p
16 Aprit 2001 186,484 370.00p
23 November 2004 493,119 200.75p

Options granted to Executive Directors as set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on page 31, are included in the abeve figures.

The exercise of options under ali schemes are subject to performance conditions that require various specified growths in eamings per ordinary share over a
three year period, details of which, for the options granted to the Executive Directors, are set out within the Directors’ remuneration report on page 29.

The market price of the ordinary shares on Friday 28 January 2005 was 208 pence and the range during the accounting period ended on 30 January 2005

was 177 pence to 327 pence.
23 Reserves
¢ Group Company
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£°000 £:000 £'000 £'000
Share pramium account 157,219 157,129 157,219 157,129
Capital redemption reserve 1,069 706 1,069 706
Profit and loss account 172,589 183,269 124,633 140,242
330,877 341,104 282 921 298,077
The Directors regard the Company’s Prafit and loss account reserves as being distributable.
The movements in the accounting period were as follows:
Share Capital
premium redemption Profit and
acoeount reserve loss acoount Total
Group £'000 £:000 £000 £'000
At 25 January 2004 157,129 706 183,269 341,104
Retained profit for the period - - 10,118 10,119
Exchange rate movement - - {21 1)
Purchase of own shares - 363 (20,778) (20,415
Premium on issuies of shares 90 - - 0
At 30 January 2005 157,219 1,069 172,589 330,877
Share Capital
premium redemption Profit and
account raserve loss account Total
Company £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 25 January 2004 157,129 706 140,242 298,077
Retained profit for the period - - 5,169 5,169
Purchase of own shares - 383 {20,778} {20,415)
Premium on issues of shares 90 - - 90
At 30 January 2005 T val) 1,069 124633 8291

48




Notes 1o the financial statements conined

24 Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities:

Operating profit

Goodwill amortisation

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets
Decrease (increase} in stocks
(Increase) gecrease in debtors
Decreass in creditors

Increase in provisions

Net cash inflow from operating activities

25 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds (debt)

{Decrease) increase in cash in the pericd
Cash ourtflow from change in debt

Change in net funds resulting from cash flows

Loan dispesed with subsidiary

Cash flow from (increase) decrease In liquid resources
Amortisation of bank ioan costs

Movement in net funds in the period
Net debt at 25 January 2004

Net funds (debt} at 30 January 2005

26 Analysis of net funds (debt)

Loan note deposit
Tender offer cash depostt
Cash at bank and in hand

Amount faling due within one year
Amount faling due after more than one year

53 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£7000 £'000
50,339 7,322
12,989 13,102
23,834 25,919
835 3615
15,365 {20,669)
(700} 2,304
(694) {17,886)
2,000 -
103,968 77,707
53 weeks 52 weeks
ended endad
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£000 £'000
{11,935) 4,007
60,000 6,667
48,065 10,674
- 6,833
(40,000) 40,000
(129) 423)
7,936 57,084
(3,563) (60,647)
4,373 {3,583
At 25 January Other non- At 30 January
2004 Re-aliocation Cash flow cash items 2005
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
170,478 {2,361) 168,117
40,000 {40,000) -
41,258 {11,935) 20323
251,736 {54,296) 197,440
(170,478) (24,950) 2,361 - {193,067}
(84,821) 24,950 60,000 (129 -
(3.663) 8,065 (129 4,373




27 Financial commitments
a) Capital commitments

Group Company
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Contracted but not provided for in the Financial statements 59,900 37,100 54,700 37,100

b) Pension arrangements
The Group contributes to the persenal pension schemes and staksholder schemes of certain Directors and employees, which are classed as defined
contribution schemes. The pension contributions under these schemes for the year were £145,000 {2004 - £159,000).

TJ Hughes Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of JJB Sports plc until the disposal by the Group of the whole of its share capital on 14 November 2003,
operated a defined benefit pension scheme. The pension costs of the scheme for the 42 weeks up to 14 November 2003 were £481,000. No disclosures
have been made in these Financial statements in respect of Financial Reporting Standard 17: Retirgrment Benefits, because the sale of the whole of the
share capital of TJ Hughes Limited resutted in JJB Sports pl; ceasing o have any responsibility for the scheme.

¢} Lease commitments
The Group and the Company lease certain land and buildings. The annual rental charged to the Group on these leases was £84,891,000 (2004 -
£92,252,000) and for the Company was £60,673,000 (2004 - £55,036,000). In addition all insurance, maintenance and repairs are paid on these
properties.

The Group and the Company have entered into non-cancellable operating leases in respect of plant, fixtures and fittings. The total annual rental charged to the
Group for the accounting period was £1,637,000 (2004 - £1,567,000) and for the Company was £1,529,600 (2004 - £863,000).

Land and Land and Plant, fixtures Plart, fixtures
huildings buildings and fittings an fittings
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
The minimum annualised rentals under the foregeing leases are as foflows:
Group
Qperating ieases which expire:
- within 1 year 261 1,158 187 153
- between 2 and 5 years 3,892 2,207 1,168 884
- gfter 5 years 79,657 80,683 - -
83,810 84,048 1,355 1,037
Land and Lang and Plant, fixtures Plant, fixtures
buildings buildings and fittings and fittings
30 January 25 January 30 January 25 January
2005 2004 2005 2004
Company £'000 £'060 £'000 £000
Cperating leases which expire:
- within 1 year 24 231 187 33
- between 2 and 5 years 2,726 1,281 1132 842
- after & years 58,024 56,250 - -
60,774 57,762 1,319 875
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28 Financial instruments
The rumerical disciosures In this note deal with financial assets and financial liabilities &s defired in Financial Reporting Standard 13: Dervatives and other
Financial Instruments. Certain financial agsets such as investments in subsidiary companigs and short-term debtors and creditors (other than those required
for currency exposures) are excluded from the scope of these disclosures.

a) Financial risks and policies
Set out below is a summary of the main financial risks faced by the Group during the accounting peried and the policies employed to address these risks.
These policies have been appiied consistently throughout the accounting period and are explained in more defall in the Financial review on pages 10 to
11 of the Annual report.

Liquidity risk — The Group's policy throughowt the accounting period has been 10 use the revolving bank credit facility together with retained profits, 1o
achieve continuity of funding and short-term flexibility.

Interest rate risk — The Group finances its operations through the revolving bank credit facility and its retained profits. Floating rates of interest are charged
on the bank facility. No interest rate hedging agresment is currently in place because given the level of borrowings and the current interest rate
environment, the Board does not consider fluctuations in interest rates to pose a significant risk to the Group.

Forsign currency risk — The majority of the Group's trading activities are conducted with United Kingdom suppliers and customers, the transactions being
payable and receivable in steriing; only approximately £25 million of the Group's annualised purchases are settied in US dollars, In December 2004, the
Group ertered into a series of forward contracts which cover its dollar requirements through to July 20085, at a fixed rate of exchange, These contracts mature
everly in February, April and June 2005 and protect the Group’s trading position and Balance sheet from significant exchange rate movements, The Group's
treasury department fracks the sterling/dellar exchange rate on a continuous basis to minimise the Group risk to currency fuctuations,

b) Financial assets

Group
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Current asset investments 168,117 210,478
(Cash at bank and in hand 23,323 41,258
197,440 251,736

The currency profile of financial assets was:

Group
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Sterling 195,848 240,285
Doliar 1,000 9,372
Euro 592 2,079
197,440 251,736

Financial assets comprise short-term cash deposits with major United Kingdom and European clearing banks and earn floating rates of interest based
upon bank base rates or at rates linked to LIBOR.

¢} Currency exposures

The table below gives details of forward contracts entered into in order to manage the foreign currency exposure as at 30 January 2005.

Initial Coniract
contract value delivery date Currency
£'000
Contract one 3476 1 February 2005 US Dollar
Contract two 3,488 1 Aprit 2005 US Dollar
Contract three 3,500 1 June 2005 US Dollar

At 25 January 2004, there were no outstanding forward contract commitments.
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28 Financial instruments continued
d) Financial liabifities

Group
30 January 25 January
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Expiring in one year of less 193,117 170,478
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years - 85,000
183,117 265,478
Unamartised finance costs (50) (179
193,067 255,299

All financial fiabiities bear floating rates of interest with the interest rate linked to LIBOR and are repayable in sterling.

e} Facilities

The Group has a committed revolving bank credit facility, in respect of which alf conditions precedent have been met, of £100 million of which £75 million
was undrawn at 30 January 2005. The revolving credit facility expires on 23 June 2005 and the Group are currently in negotiations with its Bankers fo
fenew its bormowing requirements.

Fair vaiues
There is no material difference betwesn the book value and the fair valug of the Group's financial assets and liabilities.

29 Office of Fair Trading

In August 2003, the Uffice of Fair Trading {OFT) pronourced JJB guilty of price-fidng in the sale of certain replica kit products over a wo year pericd during
2000 and 2001 and levied & penafty of £8.4 million. JJB appealed to the Competition Appeal Tribunal (CAT) against the OFT's decision on fiability and against
the level of the penafty itself. The result of the appeal against the decision of the OFT on liabiiity, atthough given mainty in favour of the OFT, included some
elemerts that were found in JJB's faveur. The decision of the CAT in the appeal against the level of the penalty was anncunced on 19 May 2005 and reduced
the penalty to £6.7 million. JJB is to seek permission 1o appeal to the Court of Appeal against the CAT's decision in relation bath to important aspects of its
gdegision on liability and on the level of the penalty. On the basis of legal aavice, JJB has created a provision of £2 million against any potential liabiltty.

30 Post balance sheet event

On 11 March 2005, JJB acquired an irevacable 999 year licence from Slazengers Limited for £10 million for the exclusive right to design, source and sell
Slazenger-brandad gof clubs, balls, ciothing, footwsar and accessories in the European Economic Area. This licence replaces a previous rovalty agreement
between the two companies and should ensure unrestricted product development, enhanced gross margin and income generation from the brand. This
acquisition will be reated as an addition in Intangidle fixed assets.

31 Transactions with related parties

a)

Whelco Heldings Limited is & company ewned by members of the family of the Company's Chairman, D, Whelan, which operates itself or through its subsidiaries,
a number of businesses including that of Wigan Athletic Football Club (WAFC), Wigan Warriors Rugby League Club, the stadium in which both teams play, which
is known as the “JJB Stadium”, and Ormell Rugby Union Club. During the accounting period ended 30 January 2005, the Company acted as sponsors of these
Threg civbs and the amount of sponsorship paid was £232,000 {2004 - £174,000), £240,000 (2004 - £347,000) and £NIL (2004 - £45,000) respectively.
Also during the accounting period ended 30 January 2005, the Company paid £50,000 (2004 - £150,000; for the naming rights for the stadium,

Advice was taken from independent third parties as to comparative levels of the costs of sponsorship and naming rights at other clubs and stadia, prior
to the above amounts being agreed. In addition, the Company provided certain motor vehicles to WAFC in their capacity as sponsars, the running costs
of whith for the accounting period ended 30 January 2005 were £14,892 (2004 - £12,242), including depreciztion of £12,701 (2004 - £3,649). Dwring
the accounting period ended 30 January 2005, one vehicle was transferred to Whelco Holdings Limited for £12,069, 2 consideration equal to its net
book value. Acditionally, during the accounting period ended 30 January 2005 a royalty commission of £140,984 (2004 — £222,474) was paid to Wigan
Warricrs in respect of Club merchandise sold in JJB stores.

in February 2000, the freehold imerest of a store in Northampton, which the Company had teased from a third parly for a number of years and at which it nad
operated a ratail store urttil October 1998, was acquired from the third party by the Trustees of the David Whelan Accumulation and Maintenance Settiement
(2 Settlernent in which the Company’s Chairman, D, Whelan, has an interest). Costs incurred by the Company in developing the site amounted to £1,045,967,
of which £45,967 was reimbursed during the accounting period ended 30 January 2005 (2004 - £1 millien). The Settierment also paid the company £83,142
during the accounting period ended 30 January 2005 in respect of an interest charge at 1% above base rate on those development costs. Following the
opening of the retail store on 10 August 2003, the cempany has continued to pay rent on a full commercial bagis at the rate of £150,000 per annum.

In July 2003, JJB ceased to trade in a loss-making store situated in Manchester. The property was sub-lef to Sharpe Knight Limited, 2 company owned
by TW. Knight, the Company's Chief Executive, ang Mrs. J. Shame, the daughter of the Chairman, b. Whelan. The terms of the sub-let, which were
completed on a full commercial basis, included the granting of a rent-free period of five months to Sharpe Knight Limited from the date of their entry to
the premises, with a subsequent rent payable of £480,000 per annum being equivalent te that payable by LB to their landlard. in November 2004, TW.
Knight ang Mrs J. Sharpe disposed of their shares in Shame Knight Lid 1o MNG-Mango UX Limited, an unrelated third party.
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Five year summary

Consofidated profit and loss accounts
For the accounting periods ended January

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Turnover
Continuing operations

Existing 773,339 77,772 769,831 739,419 663,272

Acquisitions - - 164,445 - -
Discontinued operations - 158,040 - -
Group tumover 773,339 929812 934,276 739419 663,272
Cost of sales (including exceptional operating items) (402,082) {504,665 (519,271) (375,997} (350,078
Gross profit 3N.257 425,147 415,005 363,422 313,194
Other net aperating expenses (including goodwill
amortisation and exceptional operating Rems) {320,918) (353,829} (334,247 (263137) {234,206}
Dperating profit 50,339 71,322 80,758 100,285 78,988
Continuing operations

Existing 50,339 69,148 74,146 100,285 78,988

Acquisitions - - 6,612 - -
Discontinued operations - 2,174 - -
Operating profit before goodwill amortisation ~
and exceptional operating items 63,328 90,501 93,822 113,049 91,732
Goodwill amortisation {12,389) {13,102) {13,064) (12,764) {t2,744)
Exceptional operating items - 6,077 - - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings {309) 852) - - -
Interest receivable and similar income 9,036 7,149 7,831 9,527 11,215
Interest payable and similar charges {8,692) 9,781) (11,329 (12,342) {18,808)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 50,374 67,838 77,260 97,470 71,397
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities {17,179 (22,376) (27,492} (32,640) (25,531)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 33199 45,462 49,768 64,830 45,866
Divicents paig and proposed {23,080) {23,297 {17,040 17,936 (14,201)
Retained profit for the period 10,119 22,165 32,728 46,804 31,665
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation, goodwill
amortisation, exceptional operating items and
loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings 63,672 87,869 90,324 110,234 84,141
Underlying headline earings per ordinary share 20.12p 26.99p 26.10p 31.39n 23.74p
Eamnings per ordinary share 14.36p 19.27p 20.68p 28.22p 18.58p
Dividends per ordinary share 10.00p 10.00p 7.25p 7.25p 5.75p

In caloulating the samings per ardinary share and dividends per ordinary share, the earfier years' figures have been restated 1o take account of the bonus issue
of ordinary shares in July 2001,




Consolidated halance sheets
As at January

Fixed assels
Intangible assets - goodwil
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Current asset investments
Cash at bank and in hand

Gurrent liabilities

Creditors: Amounts fafling due within one year
Bomowings
Others

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Greditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Borrowings
Others

Provisions for liabilittes and charges

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account
Capital redemption reserve
Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders’ funds

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
£000 £000 £000 £1000 £000
173,125 186,347 207414 211,842 224,806
165,175 155,791 198,709 140,632 121,460
338,300 342,138 406,123 352,474 346,066
112,719 128,084 147,906 113,216 115,455
12,181 11,481 16,889 16,512 12,436
168,117 210,478 170,478 170478 170,478
20323 41,258 37,251 8,470 33,17
322,340 301,301 372,524 308,676 331,540
(193,067) (170,478} (172,478) (170,478) (170,478)
(99,269) (100,987} 151,001 (111,525) (108,806}
{292,336) (271.465) (323,569) 282,009) (279,284)
30,004 119,836 48,955 26,673 52,256
368,304 461,974 455,078 379,147 98,322
- (84,821) (95,898) (38,762) (108,126)
7.577) (7,559) (14,257) (8.967) (8.410)
751 (92,380) (10,155 7729 (116,536)
(18,312) (16,581) (19748) {14,539) (12,504)
2415 353,003 25,175 316,879 260,282
11,538 11,899 11,752 12,371 6,175
157,219 157,129 151,836 151,536 157,204
1,069 706 706 87 87
172,589 183,269 160,881 152,585 108,726
342415 353,003 325175 316,879 260,282




Financial calendar

Final results announced
13 April 2008

Financial statements published
26 May 2005

Final dividend record date
10 June 2005

Annual General Mesting
6 July 2005

Final dividend payable
18 July 2005

Interim results to be announced
October 2005

End of current accounting period
29 January 2006

Final results o be announced
April 2006




Official Team kit suppliers

Wigan Athietic Football Club

Orrell Rugby Union Club

Leicester City Football Club

Leeds Rhinos Rugby League Club
Northern Ireland Football Association
Everton Foothall Glub

Wigan Warriors Rugby League Club
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